9.

Cordry-Sweetwater Conservancy District

8377 CORDRY DRIVE NINEVEH, IN 46164
PHONE: 317-933-2893 FAX: 317-933-3628

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda

August 200, 2024, 7:00 PM @ CSLOA
Also available online live at www.cscd-in.org

Welcome & Pledge of Allegiance
Agenda Modifications

Approval of Minutes:
a. July 16™ Special Session Minutes
b. July 16" Board Meeting Minutes
c. August 5% Special Session Minutes

Freeholder Concerns: (Please limit time to three minutes)

Staff Reports:
a. Director of Finance & Administration: Brittany Bay
i. Approval of Financial Reports
ii. Approval of Claims
b. Director of Operations & BCO: Nick Johann’s Report

Commission/Committee Reports:
a. Building- Pat Sherman

i. Building Applications

ii. Dredging Requests

iii. Structure on Unbuildable lot
Ecology- Randy Brumfield
Roads -Mark Rasdall
d. Security -Jim Maulden

o T

e. Water- Aaron Parris

Old Business
a. Wake Study Approval
b. Boat Measuring Procedure

New Business

a. Cordry Spillway Bids
b. Complaint- Running a Business within the District

Board Member Concerns/Comments

10. Adjourn



Cordry-Sweetwater Conservancy District

8377 CORDRY DRIVE NINEVEH, IN 46164
PHONE: 317-933-2893 FAX: 317-933-3628

CSCD Special Session “Minutes”
July 16™, 2024 — 6:00 PM

Board Members Present: Michael Leavitt, Aaron Parris, Ted Adolay, Pat Sherman, Mark
Rasdall, Randy Brumfield& Jim Maulden

Board Members Absent:

Staff Present: Brittany Bay & Nick Johann

Freeholders/Guests: Estimated 15 & numerous online viewers

Mr. Leavitt called the meeting to order at 6:11pm.
The preliminary budget for 2025 was discussed.
There was discussion over dam funding.

There was discussion over water versus the general portion of salaries and expenses.

MOTION: Mr. Rasdall moved to adjourn, seconded by Mr. Adolay, motion carried unanimously.
The meeting adjourned at 6:53pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Ted Adolay, Secretary

Date Submitted:



Cordry-Sweetwater Conservancy District
Board of Directors Meeting
July 16%, 2024

1. Board Members Present: Randy Brumfield, Pat Sherman, Aaron Parris, Ted Adolay, Jim Maulden,
Mark Rasdall, and Mike Leavitt

2. Board Members Absent: None

3. Also, Present:
a. Staff: Brittany Bay & Nick Johann

b. CSCD Attorney: Roger Young
c. Estimated 34 freeholders in attendance & numerous online viewers.
4. Welcome: Mr. Leavitt called the meeting to order at 7:05 PM

5. Agenda Modifications:
a. Mrs. Bay requested to add line items 4a. Approve Cordry Spillway Project, 4b. Consider
Additional Appropriations Resolution & Establish Hearing Date, 4c. Establish Date for
Hearing on Drawings, Specifications, & Cost Estimates, 4d. Authorize filing of Bond
Application w/Indiana Bond Bank and 5. Dr. Sweeten’s Presentation.

MOTION: Mr. Sherman motioned to approve the agenda
modifications as requested, seconded by Mr. Rasdall. Motion
passed unanimously.

6. Approval of Minutes:

MOTION: Mr. Brumfield motioned to approve June 18", Board
Minutes as submitted, seconded by Mr. Adolay. Motion passed
unanimously.

7. Bond Issuance
a. Mr. Leavitt gave the floor to Brian Colton with Baker Tilly to discuss the
Bond Issuance. Mr. Young noted Brian Colton’s presentation is extremely
important, but he first wanted to give frecholders a picture of what the
Conservancy is doing and put it into context. Mr. Young noted the District
is anticipating the Cordry Spillway Project, and the cost is currently
unknown because we have not received construction bids but they need to
size the bond issuance large enough to take into account if bids come in
higher than expected. Mr. Young noted that the working group, which
included: Mr. Sherman, bond counsel, Baker Tilly, and himself, have
recommended a bond ordinance authorizing bonds not to exceed $3.2
million. Mr. Young noted that is the amount not to exceed not the issuance
amount. Mr. Young noted he believed the Board wanted to start the project



in autumn, so the project will go out to bid in the next few weeks, and the
bid opening is scheduled. Mr. Young noted that if this is fast tracked the
soonest the District will have the cash is around September 11%, Mr. Young
noted that Mr. Colton will give information on if the bonds are sold in that
amount what that is going to do taxes, tax rate impact, and how long it will
take to pay back. Mr. Young noted that there would be one special
meeting, and that meeting is anticipated to occur on August 5%, and that is
something the Board will be setting tonight. Mr. Young noted the official
public comment will come for this at the August 5% meeting. Mr. Young
noted that if the Board approves the bond issue there will be a notice of
determination to issue bonds published, then there will be no further public
hearings. Mr. Young noted one thing happening tonight is the project is
being reintroduced, the Board will be approving the project, Mr. Young
reiterated the Board will not be approving anything tonight just approving
moving forward with the next step. Mr. Young noted that the Board will be
asked to authorize publication if the notice of additional appropriation for
the bond proceeds. Mr. Young noted that the bond proceeds are not in the
2024 budget and the district cannot spend money until it’s been
appropriated. Mr. Young noted that the additional appropriation hearing is
going to appropriate bond proceeds to the project, so they can be spent on
the project.

. Brian Colton from Baker Tilly passed out an information packet to the
Board and noted that what they are showing is the maximum parameters.
Mr. Colton noted that when setting a bond resolution, you are setting the
financial parameters, and you must set the max because you can always
come down from that, but once you go through and approve it, if that
number goes up, you have to start the process over again. Mr. Colton noted
that they always build in contingencies in case bids come in higher than
anticipated. Mr. Colton went over the first page of the packet which
reviewed project cost and funding. Mr. Colton reviewed that the $3.2
million amount included $2.75 million for the project, a 10% contingency
piece, and allowance for an issuance cost. Mr. Colton reviewed the second
page of the packet given to the Board and noted that it showed an
illustrative amortization for the debt payment, based on a 5% interest rate.
Mr. Colton noted at 5% this would be about $270,000 a year in debt service
and that would go out until January of 2044, almost a 20-year bond
issuance. Mr. Colton noted that the payments would be level and interest
would be at a fixed rate so there would be no variable rate concerns. Mr.
Colton noted that the last schedule showed the repayment source. Mr.
Colton noted that this is a property tax bond issue, so it will be levied in
freeholder property assessed valuation and that is about a 4 %2 cents tax rate
and gave an example of a property valued at $100,000 being a $45
payment. Mr. Colton noted that this schedule also showed if you opted for
collecting the payment via equal assessment instead of through property tax
and that would be about $168 per freehold per year. Mr. Colton noted that
the pledge is property taxes but during the budget process the Board has the
decision on an annual basis if they want to supplement that with other
revenue sources and bring down the property tax amount. Mr. Colton went
over a couple methods for the sale, one being local banks, and the other



being the Indiana Bond Bank. Mr. Colton noted that they have a community
finance program and that is about a 4% rate and noted that is probably
better than what they could get with a local bank, but they have some
additional costs. Mr. Colton noted one thing they are asking the Board to
approve tonight is to file an application with the bond bank. Mr. Colton
noted that there is a deadline of July 24" for filing to get the money by early
September. Mr. Colton noted that this application did not mean they would
be going with the bond bank, but it would put them in a queue if that was
what is decided. There was discussion over this bond being a 10-year call.

. Mr. Young noted that at the beginning of discussion with this project there
were discussions about doing the bond issue for both Cordry and
Sweetwater in one bond issue and issue two series of bonds, which would
have saved on administrative costs. Mr. Young explained that would mean
approving both series in once proceeding but only issuing series a right now
for the Cordry project and not issuing series b until you were ready to go on
the Sweetwater project, since they were already approved through the initial
process. Mr. Young noted however, there is a threshold for governmental
entities on the amount of money they are trying to raise and if they hit that
amount then the district would be taking on a controlled project. Mr. Young
noted that if this were considered a controlled project it would require
petitions, remonstrance, and set the timeline back. Mr. Young noted that the
working group felt it was important to the Board that this project starts right
away, so the project can wrap up over the winter months and the road can
open back up by spring. Mr. Rasdall noted that they do not know what
Sweetwater is going to cost either. There was discussion that with the
estimated costs for the Cordry project and the information Mr. Johann has
received about Sweetwater it would put the project over the threshold and it
would be considered a controlled project. Mr. Young noted that he wanted
to explain this because there was talk of doing them both at once and this is
why it is not recommended this way.

MOTION: Mr. Sherman motioned to approve authorizing Baker
Tilly to file an application with Indiana Bond Bank on behalf of
Cordry Sweetwater, seconded by Mr. Rasdall. Motion passed
unanimously.

MOTION: Mr. Sherman motioned to approve moving forward
with the Cordry Spillway Project as recommended and designed
by Christopher Burke Engineering, seconded by Mr. Parris.
Motion passed unanimously.

MOTION: Mr. Sherman motioned to approve holding the public
hearing of the Resolution to appropriate the bond proceeds to the
project on August 5% at 6pm at the CSLOA, seconded by Mr.
Brumfield. Motion passed unanimously.

MOTION: Mr. Sherman motioned to approve holding the public
hearing on drawing specifications and cost estimates on August



5% at 6pm at the CSLOA, seconded by Mr. Rasdall. Motion
passed unanimously.

d. Mr. Sherman thanked Brian from Baker Tilly, Lisa Lee, and Roger Young
because this is a big deal, but they worked with the challenging timeframe
and got everything done correctly.

8. Wake Study Approval
a. Mr. Brumfield noted that there had been questions about the proposed
study, so he invited Dr. Sweeten and his team here to speak on behalf of the
proposed study. Mr. Brumfield introduced Dr. Sweeten and gave him the

floor.

i.

Mr. Sweeten started by mentioning the budget attached to the
proposal is for the entire study, not just this year. Mr. Sweeten
introduced his colleague Herb Manifold who would be working
with him on this study. Mr. Sweeten noted the study they are
conducting would see if there is a difference between the size of
waves produced from wake boats and ski boats, how long does it
take for those waves to dissipate, and what effect do those waves
have on the shoreline. Mr. Manifold noted to answer these
questions the study will focus on a wave study design, they
would place wave buoys, which have a sensor inside to measure
the waves, in a couple of locations on the lake, they have read
literature on this topic and this study is similar to the ones
conducted in that literature. Mr. Manifold noted to do the
shoreline assessment they would do lidar and photogrammetry of
both lakes’ entire boundaries twice once this fall and once in two
years to compare the shoreline erosion. Mr. Manifold noted that
lastly to look at individual boat waves they would test the boats
using a cv wave sensor and pressure transducer that would give
information on the wave heights, wave periods/peaks, wave
direction, and wave energy/force. Mr. Manifold noted they would
conduct a controlled experiment where there would be sites to do
a test with 4 boats, 2 wake boats and 2 ski boats and they will do
passes of the boats perpendicular to the sensors so the wave will
come across and it will calculate to the millisecond wave speed,
height, and how long it takes the wave to attenuate. Mr. Sweeten
noted that they would like to leave the wave sensor out at a
designated location as long as they can so they can get data on
natural wave and boat energy to compare to the controlled
experiment. Mr. Sweeten noted that for the controlled test the
boats would be driven at 10 mph to get the biggest wave, and
then at 30 mph for normal waves on a plane but these could be
adjusted to what the board specifies, as long as it is consistent.
Mr. Sweeten noted for the shoreline study that Mr. Manifold will
use a survey grade gps and locate stakes at 20 feet apart from the
shore and then 50 feet out to wherever the erosion may be. Mr.
Sweeten noted that they may need some assistance from the
Board on where their major concerns for erosion are, but they



il.

iii.

iv.

vi.

will pick up some of that when they fly the drone around. Mr.
Sweeten noted that this was a simple, straightforward
experimental design for the study they feel comfortable with it,
it’s defensible, and will generate data. Mr. Sweeten opened
comment to the Board for any questions.

Mr. Maulden asked about the costs associated with the different
tasks. Mr. Sweeten noted that the budget that was included was
from the original proposal that is not the one for the design page.
Mr. Maulden noted that the boat weight was raised to 4,000
pounds so it may not just be wake boat versus a ski boat but a
4,000-pound boat versus a 3,000-pound boat; so, size could be a
concern. Mr. Sweeten noted that the Board could choose which
boats need addressed in the controlled test.

Mr. Parris asked if this controlled test would be conducted with
freeholder boats and if so, are the boats being operated by the
freeholders or by them. Mr. Manifold noted that it would be
conducted with freeholder boats and the freeholder would be
operating the boat, but they would be in the boats making sure
that everything is consistent.

Mr. Rasdall noted that they would be taking the initial readings of
the ski boat and the wake boat during the controlled test and then
the buoy sensor would go out for a period of time. Mr. Rasdall
asked how they would be able to know which boat generated the
wave. Mr. Sweeten noted that it won’t be able to tell that. Mr.
Rasdall then noted on a Saturday when multiple boats are running
by the sensor, all the sensor is going to tell is that there are waves
that are at a certain height. Mr. Manifold noted that it has no way
to tell what boat, it has no way to tell what is doing it, it will just
pick up all the wave attributes. Mr. Sweeten noted the controlled
experiment will show the wave information for the boats chosen.
Mr. Sherman noted his initial question is if there is not a camera
on the buoy how they will know which boats are creating which
waves. Mr. Sweeten noted that they won’t know when the sensor
is out by itself, but what they’re after here is the wave energy of
all sources of the waves the district is dealing with on the
shoreline. Mr. Sweeten noted that even if it were taking a picture
of the boat, there would be so much unknown about the boat such
as speed, mass inside the boat, and if it is going perpendicular to
the sensor, it would be very far away from the experimental
design and it would be difficult to draw conclusions from. Mr.
Sherman noted that there is now a specific wake surfing course
and asked would they be able to out the sensors somewhere on
the course so they would know the dissipation of the waves of the
wake boats by the time they hit the shore. Mr. Sweeten noted that
in some of the other studies the data has helped to determine how
big of an area a wake boat needs and how far from the shoreline
it should be before the wave attenuated.

Mr. Rasdall noted that on a busy day there are multiple boats
with waves going against each other or building on each other.



Mr. Rasdall asked how do you know which boat is causing them.
Mr. Sweeten noted that they would capture that on the wave
sensor, so on a busy day they would know that it was busy but
there is no way to standardize that. Mr. Sweeten noted that it
would be impossible to standardize that to be the parameters. Mr.
Sweeten noted what they could do is understand the full wave
energy that the shoreline is taking on. Mr. Sweeten noted that if a
Saturday was heavier, they would see that on the data. Mr.
Rasdall asked about reducing the weight of a boat from 4,000 to
3,200 if that would be a major impact on wave energy. Mr.
Manifold noted that is something that they can do in the actual
experimental design the Board can help select the boats they are
most concerned with. Mr. Rasdall asked about the number of
passengers because some boats hold 12 people. Mr. Rasdall noted
that is a huge impact on a boat that has 3 people in it opposed to
one that has 10 people in it.

vii. Mr. Maulden asked what can actually be done with the data if
you don’t know what boat is making the waves other than
realizing the lakes are busy on Saturdays. Mr. Sweeten noted that
you will get an idea about the amount of wave energy that is
relative to where there might be erosion problems. Mr. Sweeten
noted that they won’t know what the full wave effect is here, but
they will know that from the controlled experiment.

viii. Mr. Brumfield noted that they were going to do some testing on
phosphorus and asked Mr. Sweeten to explain some of the effects
of suspended phosphorus. Mr. Sweeten noted that phosphorus is
a challenge for every lake, a tiny amount is chronic, he noted that
one pound of phosphorus can grow 500 pounds of algae. Mr.
Sweeten explained that is why being proactive with lakes is much
easier to do than to try to restore them. Mr. Sweeten noted this is
something that is normally flying under the radar, because people
don’t think about it until they see green water.

9. Freeholder Concerns:

a. Jennifer Roll (DF 52A) noted she had been a member of the lake community since 1977 and
that over the last 10 years it seems to be a free for all of boats speeding into the idle zone.
Mrs. Roll asked the Board to please do something about this. Mrs. Roll noted she knows that
people are really frustrated that security is giving more tickets because for the last 10 years
they have been able to do what they want. Mr. Maulden noted that they have talked about that
at security, and this is one of the issues that boat patrol is looking for this year and they have
given tickets for this, but they can’t catch everyone.

b. Alison Randolph noted she is the CSLOA President, and she wanted to publicly thank the
Board, the freeholders, the sponsors, and everybody that came to the July 6™ event at the
beach. Mrs. Randolph noted that they have their meeting the 25" but wanted freeholders to
know how supportive the Board, Nick, Brittany, Rebecca, Mike Leavitt and his team were,
and to thank them. Mrs. Randolph mentioned Aaron with Sweetwater Realty and a lot of their
other sponsors really helped them out. Mrs. Randolph noted she just wanted to thank
everyone and mention that it was an amazing event. Mrs. Randolph noted that the CSLOA
wanted to mark the date of July 5,2025 for the event next year. Mrs. Randolph noted they had



quite a few volunteers and she wanted to thank them publicly as well. Mrs. Randolph
concluded by thanking everyone especially the Fire Department.

¢. Carrie Vavul (OES 333) asked where they were with redrawing maps or doing a spreadsheet
for the district areas and election guidelines. Mr. Maulden asked for this to be added to the
agenda. Mrs. Bay noted the map and spreadsheet is completed and it has been sent to the
Board. Mr. Leavitt noted to put this on the agenda for approval next month and then they
could reach out to the county GIS person and have it added there. Mr. Young noted this may
require court approval if any lots are shifting areas. Mr. Young noted that if adopting
something that is going to change anything from the way its been done in the past in terms of
voter eligibility or candidate eligibility it needs court approval. Mr. Young noted that it would
require Board resolution and then he would have to petition the court to have the new map
approved. Mr. Young noted he believed he could get a court order to approve this prior to
publication of the election notice. Mr. Young requested Mrs. Bay send over the list and other
documents so that he could prepare a resolution, and then the Board could adopt this on
August 5%. Mr. Maulden noted that there were other election issues. Mr. Leavitt noted that
could be added to next month’s agenda.

d. Marcia Harper noted that she did not have a question about the study until Dr. Sweeten
discussed the days of general traffic, would the study show the distance of the buoys that we
have at 50 feet are an appropriate distance or like at other lakes are 100 or 200 feet. Mr.
Leavitt noted that in terms of the buoy you have reporting wave action it would tell you. Mr.
Leavitt noted that it will tell how busy it is at 50 feet or if its more appropriate at 100 feet.

10. Management Reports:
a. Director of Finance & Administrative:
1. Mrs. Bay summarized the fund report. The current balance is $4,217,646.43.

MOTION: Mr. Sherman motioned to approve the financial
report subject to audit, seconded by Mr. Rasdall. Motion passed
unanimously.

2. Mrs. Bay summarized the appropriation report and monthly claims list. The monthly
claims total is $349,332.93. The unexpended remaining balance for 2024 is
$1,303,489.36 or 62.53%.

MOTION: Mr. Rasdall motioned to approve the monthly claims
subject to audit; seconded by Mr. Sherman. Motion passed
unanimously.

b. Director of Operations
1. Mr. Johann summarized his report.

11. Commission Reports:
a. Building:
1. Mr. Sherman reviewed the building applications.

MOTION: Mr. Sherman motioned to approve building
applications 24-052 and 24-053 for approval from the CSCD
Board contingent upon lot owners obtaining all permits required



by Brown County and meeting all conditions by the Building
Commission, seconded by Mr. Parris. Motion passed
unanimously.

2. Mr. Sherman reviewed the dredging requests.

MOTION: Mr. Sherman motioned to approve dredging request
D024-007, D024-008, and D024-009 for approval from the CSCD
Board contingent upon lot owners meeting all conditions by the
Building Commission, seconded by Mr. Rasdall. Motion passed
unanimously.

b. Ecology:
1. Mr. Brumfield summarized the ecology minutes.

1. Mr. Brumfield discussed the issues with the
pickleball/basketball court hours and suggested
have set hours and signage for the
pickleball/basketball court.

MOTION: Mr. Rasdall motioned to approve Pickleball hours be
on Monday/Wednesday/Friday/Saturday: 8am-12pm and
Wednesday/Sunday: 6pm-9pm and basketball has priority during
non-pickleball hours.

Discussion: There was discussion over other activities and the
Board was in agreement there are no assigned hours for other
activities; other activities are permissible as long as basketball
players or pickle ball players are not already utilizing the facility.

Seconded by Mr. Maulden. Motion passed unanimously.

ii. Mr. Brumfield noted that with the help of Katie
Starr the CSCD was approved for the America the
Beautiful Grant.
¢. Roads:
1. Mr. Rasdall summarized the roads minutes.

d. Security:
1. Mr. Maulden summarized the security minutes.

i. Mr. Maulden discussed purchasing body cameras
and cell phones for boat patrol to utilize.

ii. Mr. Maulden discussed towing frecholders’
watercraft. Mr. Young noted that when towing a
freeholder boat, it would be a good idea if you’re
going to allow boat patrol to tow freeholders boats
to have the boat owner sign a release prior to
having them tow the boat. There was discussion
on whether it would matter if the owner was not
the one operating the boat. Mr. Young noted that



he believed if the owner authorizes the person to
operate the boat that’s authorizing the operation of
the boat and doing those things that are necessary
to operate, including getting it back to shore. Mr.
Leavitt asked that Mr. Young prepare a release
form.

iii. Mr. Maulden noted security discussed changing
the verbiage on the patrol boats from CSCD Lake
Safety to CSCD Lake Patrol. There was discussion
of not knowing when the change to lake safety
occurred. The Board was in agreement that the
boats have CSCD Lake Patrol on them.

iv. Mr. Maulden noted at the meeting Cathie Brown
asked if since she is Boat Patrol if she is on her
dock and sees a violation can, she write them a
ticket when she is off duty? Mr. Maulden noted
that the security commission unanimously decided
yes, she could write a ticket. Mr. Maulden noted
that if a freeholder sends us a picture that verifies
the time date and infraction, we can write a ticket.
Mr. Maulden asked if the Board had a problem
with this. Mr. Maulden noted that they’re just
trying to make the lakes safe and hoping that
everybody is feeling safer this year.

i. Mr. Young noted that law enforcement is
considered on duty 24/7, they may not be
on shift, but they are on duty. Mr. Young
noted he did not know the protocols for
boat patrol, but they may want to consider
writing into the boat patrol rules that boat
patrol is considered to be on duty 24/7 and
shift hours may be assigned from time to
time but they’re on duty. Mr. Young noted
that meant they have the jurisdiction to
give a citation any time they observe an
infraction.

il. Mr. Maulden asked if we are withing our
rights, if a freeholder sends us a picture of
an infraction to send that to boat patrol and
have them give out a citation. Mr. Young
noted that its going to be up to the
discretion of the boat patrol person writing
the ticket and if they have enough
evidence.

MOTION: Mr. Rasdall motioned to approve that lake patrols are
on duty 24/7 even if they are not on shift and have the ability to
issue a citation to someone who is breaking the rules, at their



discretion, seconded by Mr. Brumfield. Motion passed
unanimously.

iii. Mr. Young noted that he is heating that the
lakes are getting busy, and you may have
to ask someone to leave. Mr. Young asked
if there is a resolution that gives someone
the authority to act on behalf of the board
to trespass people off the lake. Mr. Rasdall
suggested putting this on the agenda for
the August 5% meeting and Mr. Young
could write a Resolution authorizing Nick,
Brittany and each board member to be able
to do this.

e. Water:
1. Mr. Parris summarized the water minutes.
i. Mr. Parris noted there was an issue with
freeholder’s water turn on.
12. Old Business:
a. Public Hearing on Additional Appropriations

1. The Public Hearing resumed at 9:10pm.

2. Mr. Sherman asked what the Board’s thoughts are on how were
going to pay for this. Mr. Sherman discussed the equal assessment
as this is from the lakes. Mr. Sherman asked if since this is strictly a
lakes issue should be put on the decals and spread over two years?
Mr. Sherman noted that they could borrow from the rainy-day fund
and pay it back, but the study is going to take more than one year.
Mr. Sherman noted that as they move forward with budgets the
Board needs to determine how money is going to be raised and who
is going to be responsible in the district to pay that. Mr. Sherman
noted the other issue is are we getting the information needed from
the study and noted his concern is that if we can’t determine which
boats are making the waves on a regular basis he doesn’t know what
good that is going to do for them, unless there is some other benefit
they can get from the study like make the District eligible for some
grants. Mr. Leavitt noted the portion of the study regarding the
shorelines and the phosphorus could potentially make the District
eligible for Lake/River enhancement types of grants. There was
discussion of the cost of the study for the first year.

3. Mr. Adolay noted that the survey that Mr. Parris conducted and
what this gentleman is doing for $61,000 is the same thing. Mr.
Adolay noted that this is supposed to decide whether the wake boats
cause a problem and he can’t tell us if wake boats are causing the
problem. Mr. Pariss noted that there a lot of parts of this study that
are very from what he and Scott put together and their insights to be
gleaned from this study. Mr. Parris noted that the challenge for him
is the study of the waves during the day that compounds on itself, to
solve that you would limit the number of boats on the lake during



the day, you can’t do that. Mr. Rasdall noted it does not further
define what boat did it. Mr. Parris noted this study in his opinion
solves a handful of problems. Mr. Rasdall noted that they are not
approving the study tonight just the money for it, in case they want
to do portions of the study.

4. Mr. Leavitt closed the Public Hearing of Additional Appropriations
at 9:26pm.

MOTION: Mr. Rasdall motioned to approve Resolution 2024-11
Additional Appropriations, seconded by Mr. Brumfield. Roll
Call:

Pat Sherman: Aye
Mark Rasdall: Aye
Jim Maulden: Aye
Ted Adolay: Nay
Randy Brumfield: Aye
Aaron Parris: Nay
Mike Leavitt: Aye

Motion passed 5-2.

13. New Business:

a. Rules Discussion

i.

Mr. Sherman noted that he had spoken with Marica Haper about
the training for wake boats with boat patrol staff and one thing he
wanted to ask the Board to approve is the ability for a training
session to have wake boats on the lake utilizing full wake
enhancements followed by boat patrol so they can physically see
them being used and take pictures and make a movie or use those
still pictures for training purposes. Mr. Sherman noted there were
different wake enhancing devices and Mr. Parris volunteered his
boat and they could look for other freeholders with different
wake boats to volunteer for training purposes. Mr. Sherman noted
that they could only utilize their wake enhancing devices during
that training.

i. Mr. Maulden noted the only problem he had with
this was the lake is already busy and now were
going to have boat patrol following behind wake
surfers seeing what kind of wave they are putting
out. Mr. Maulden noted that the Board had already
received a picture that said they were deploying
wake-enhancing devices and Mr. Parris was
adamant the boat had no wake enhancing devices
on it. Mr. Parris noted that he was reasonably
confident they were not being used and he later
found the boat and became fully confident no
wake enhancing devices being used because they
had been removed/disabled from the boat. Mr.



Parris noted what Mr. Sherman was asking is for a
way to educate on what it actually looks like when
this rule is being broken as opposed to making the
assumption based on the opinion of the individual
who sent the email. Mr. Rasdall noted he believed
to educate is an excellent idea. Mr. Parris noted
this is why he is willing to participate to help
educate boat patrol.

MOTION: Mr. Sherman motioned to approve boat patrol
training purposes only to allow volunteers with wake boats to
utilize their wake enhancing equipment only during the training
session and take photos/videos for this training. Motion seconded
by Mr. Rasdall.

Discussion: Mr. Brumfield asked during this training have
someone behind the boats wake surfing. There was a discussion
about wake surfing. Mr. Maulden asked if they allow this and
educate boat patrol can they prove someone is using it and give
them a ticket from the picture. Mr. Rasdall noted if they see this
and believe it being used then the resolution with the affidavit
gave boat patrol permission to board the boat and see if their
ballast tanks are full. Mr. Young noted that if someone says no to
boarding their boat you cannot, however if they say no then you
can take their lake privileges. There was discussion about live
wells. Mr. Young noted that they can let you board their boat
with permission to inspect, but if they say no they can be cited for
refusing to allow inspection which carries the same as a failed
inspection. There was discussion about disabling devices and
what has to be done to disable them.

Motion passed unanimously.

ii. Mr. Sherman discussed Title 14 of the Indiana Code and noted he
believed the Board needed to be very definitive with that because
there is a lot in Title 14 that has nothing to do with the district
lakes. Mr. Sherman noted that there is the issue of open
containers, and the lakes are some people’s back yards. Mr.
Maulden noted he didn’t believe open containers were in there.
Mr. Brumfield noted that in Indiana you can have an open
container, the driver just cannot be drunk. Mr. Sherman noted
that needed to be verified because that talks about another article
Indiana Codes that applies too. Mr. Maulden noted that the
security commission looked at that when doing the boater safety
test.

iii. Mr. Sherman noted the other issue would be whether personal
buoys have to be pulled in every night and if they could revisit
that issue. Mr. Sherman noted that if it is a buoy that is lit and no
more than 25 feet from the shoreline it could be left out. Mr.



Brumfield noted that these buoys get caught in props and cause
damage to boats. Mr. Maulden noted that they already had Mrs.
Bay send out alerts and letters on this topic. Mr. Maulden noted
that if they are in use they could pull them up and tie them to
their docks.

14. Board Member Concerns:

.

a. Mr. Sherman appreciated everyone that was there.
b.

Mr. Rasdall noted he thinks this education thing is a big thing and thanked
everyone for coming.

Mr. Maulden noted he would like to go back to buoys are they changing the
rules, because letters have already been sent out and what they are supposed
to be doing. There was discussion and the Board was in agreement they are
going to continue to follow the current rule.

Mr. Adolay noted he thought they were discussing touchless boat covers
that evening. Mr. Parris noted he didn’t believe the representative showed
up. Mr. Adolay noted he believed they were bad.

Mr. Parris noted that one question Dr. Sweeten asked from his presentation
of the study was what the major concern and he is believes his major
concern is the dam and the buoys should be placed near the dams to
measure erosion, the wake surfing course is there, and most lake activities
go on there. Mr. Parris noted he wanted to give a shout out to the working
group for all their efforts with the bond. Mr. Parris concluded by noting he
would like to bring up the culture as far a community civility and
mentioned that we have all heard about people yelling at boat patrol when
breaking the rules and wanted to take a minute to appreciate the fine people
like Brittany and Nick who are working at the conservancy and other
valuable boat patrol assets. Mr. Parris noted that when they fall short in
something they are doing in the office or out in the field they are human and
we all mistakes and asked everyone to be gracious.

Mr. Brumfield noted to add to what Mr. Parris mentioned at the end of the
day we are all neighbors whether you agree with someone or no, you still
have to be someone what civil. Mr. Brumfield noted that he appreciated
everyone staying, the boat patrol, and the staff we have. Mr. Brumfield
noted that he is aware we are going through a lot of transitions so bear with
them, they’re just trying to make it better.

Mr. Leavitt thanked everyone for being there and being involved.

15. Adjourn (10:03)

MOTION: Mr. Maulden moved to adjourn, seconded by Mr.
Parris. Motion passed unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

Ted Adolay, Board Secretary
Date Submitted:



Cordry-Sweetwater Conservancy District
Board of Directors Special Meeting
August 5%, 2024

. Board Members Present: Mike Leavitt, Aaron Parris, Ted Adolay, Pat Sherman (joined meeting at
6:45), Randy Brumfield, Jim Maulden, and Mark Rasdall

. Also, Present:

. Board Members Absent: None

a. Staff: Brittany Bay, Nick Johann, and Josh Bryant
b. 15 Freeholders in attendance and numerous online viewers

. Call to order at 6:03 PM

. Adoption of Bond Resolution 2024-12:

a. Mr. Young noted that a general overview of both the project and the proposed financing
should be presented to the freeholders again.

1.

1i.

Mr. Johann went over the Cordry Spillway Repair Project noting that this project
would consist of replacing the concrete structure on the side of the dam and the
downstream side as well. Mr. Johann noted this project could start as early as
September 9™ and dropping of the lake by no more than two feet. Mr. Johann noted
that could change based on the contractors. Mr. Johann noted that the project
completion timeline is for 6 months and that the road by the spillway would be
closed for the duration of the project but, noted that freeholders would still have
access to every address on the lake there would just not be access where they are
working.

Mr. Young noted that while this project is something the Board wants to do the
District is being compelled by DNR to do this project due to the dam rating. There
was discussion about the difficulty of securing insurance coverage because of the
dam rating. Mr. Young went over the maximum parameters of the project with a
not to exceed $3.2 million; this would cover the estimate of the project costing
$2.75 million with a 10% contingency. Mr. Young noted this estimated project
budget could not go over that amount and would hopefully be less. Mr. Young
discussed funding and noted that it is being structured as a 20-year bond with a
payback over 20 years. Mr. Young noted that if this is funded through equal
assessment that would be about $166 per freehold per year anticipating a 5%
interest rate. Mr. Young then noted that the District has an application in with the
Indiana Bond Bank and the Financial Advisors say it is favorable to get approved,
if approved by the Bond Bank the interest rate will drop to 4%. Mr. Young then
noted that if the project is funded solely through property taxes, then it would be
about 4.5 cent per hundred increases on taxes. Mr. Young then noted that whether
the bonds would be paid back through equal assessments, ad valorem property
taxes or a combination of the two would be at the discretion of the Board, and a
decision the Board will make in the coming weeks. Mr. Young noted that the bonds
have a 10-year call period.



iii. The Public Hearing of Adoption of Bond Resolution
a. Mr. Leavitt opened the floor to Public Comment:

i

ii.

ik

iv.

Skip Ramsey (DF 49) noted that it was said this will be
paid either by assessment of property taxes or by equal
assessment and that freeholders have gone through this
before and if a freeholder has a $500,000 home, they are
paying a lot more if it goes through property tax than if it
goes by frechold. Mr. Ramsey noted he believed it’s not
right that freeholders who have houses have to pay for it.
Tim Wozniak (J28) noted his question was about the
engineering report and asked if DNR had to sign off on
the repair plans. Mr. Leavitt answered yes DNR had to
sign off on the project and that review time from the
DNR is what delayed the project, and they had originally
hoped to start around July 4. Mr. Johann noted that
DNR had had it for 6 months and then permitted it. Mr.
Wozniak then asked if DNR approved the designs and if
that is what contractors are bidding on. It was answered
that it was.

Cully Kinnick (CF 8b) asked about using the Rainy-Day
Fund to offset some of the project cost. Mr. Leavitt noted
that it could be used to offset the cost, but they would also
have to look at paying back the Rainy-Day Fund. It was
noted this fund does not have enough money to pay the
entire project cost. Mr. Kinnick asked why the money
would need to be paid back. Mr. Leavitt noted that the
Rainy-Day Fund falls under the budget to lower your
assessment, and if that money is pulled out then your
assessment will increase.

Sharon VanKooten (165/G 50) expressed her concerns of
seeing more tax defaults and delinquencies with adding
this to the equal assessment as it is already scheduled to
increase annually for 4 or 5 years on top of the post covid
inflationary environment. Mrs. Vankooten asked the
Board to take into consideration are they raising the
equal assessment above the ability and willingness of
frecholders to pay for the modest offshore homes or
empty lots. There was discussion of a cumulative fund.
Mike Warner (G24) asked if the property tax was raising
a lot more than $166 a year because if you do 4.5 cents
does it equal out the same as the $166 a year. Mr. Leavitt
responded that it’s 4.5 cents per hundred of assessed
value. Mr. Young noted that to see the impact on each
individual freehold you would have to look at your tax
bill and see what your assessed value is and compute how
much that would be on your individual house or
freehold; so, you would look at your assessed value and
its 4.5 cents per hundred.



vi. Denise Caudill (I 15) noted that she did a quick
calculation and on a $400,000 home it would be about
$180. Mrs. Caudill noted that she is a member or former
member of the recently suspended Financial Advisory
Committee and she does not agree with this being the
fixed rate. Mrs. Caudill noted that she believes value
added tax naturally spreads it to people like herself and
her waterfront property that is probably assessed a little
higher than her neighbor across the street that is not
taking advantage of the lake at all. Mrs. Caudill noted
that she was part of the equal assessment calculation and
served on the committee to keep it curtailed and keep
track of what was going on, but she doesn’t necessarily
agree with it.

vii. At this time Mr. Young noted that while it is important
for the Board to hear freeholder comment on ad valorem
repayment versus equal assessment repayment, that is
not what the Board is deciding tonight. Mr. Young noted
that tonight the Board is approving the project,
approving the bonds does not approve the way they will
be repaid. Mr. Young noted the decision for repayment
will be decided as the Board works through the budget
and the budget hearing process will give freeholders the
opportunity to voice their concerns and position on
whether it should be repaid by equal assessment, ad
valorem assessment, or a combination of the two.

viii. A freeholder asked if the ramps were being replaced and
the Board answered yes both ramps will be replaced.
b. Mr. Leavitt closed the Public Hearing at 6: 27pm.

MOTION: Mr. Parris motioned to adopt drawing specifications,
cost estimates, and determination to sell the bonds, seconded by
Mr. Adolay.

Discussion: Mr. Leavitt noted that opening is Wednesday
morning. Mr. Leavitt noted there has not been much said about
cost estimates and that is intentional to get the best bid from
contractors.

Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)
MOTION: Mr. Rasdall motioned to approve Resolution 2024-13-

Additional Appropriations, seconded by Mr. Brumfield. Motion
passed unanimously. (6-0)

6. Resolution 2024-14: Appointing Agents pursuant to 1.C.35-43-2-2,



a. Mr. Leavitt noted that previously there was a board motion regarding who had the authority to
trespass individuals from CSCD property but that would not follow the law in terms of the
prosecutor being able to prosecute someone if they trespassed CSCD property. Mr. Leavitt
noted this Resolution establishes the correct legal process of who is legally authorized to have
someone trespassed from CSCD property. Mr. Young noted that this Resolution gives 9
individuals that authority, all 7 Board Members, Brittany, and Nick. Mr. Young noted that the
way the law is set up it will require someone with authority to tell a person to leave before
they could be arrested for trespassing.

MOTION: Mr. Brumfield motioned to approve Resolution 2024-
14- Appointing Agents pursuant to 1.C.35-43-2-2, seconded by
Mr. Parris. Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

7. Resolution 2024-15 Clarifying Boundaries of Areas within the CSCD from which Directors are
Elected and Specifying the Freeholds Located within in each Electoral Area

a. Mr. Young noted this Resolution describes which freeholds are in which electoral areas. Mr.
Young gave the history of in 1954 there were 3 electoral areas, and then in 1974 the Brown
County Circuit Court increased that number to 7 electoral areas from 5. Mr. Young noted that
the Resolution increasing the areas from 3 to 5 could not be found but he would assume there
was one. Mr. Young noted that from 1974 to present time there were 7 directors and
according to the Court’s order the area boundaries were set forth on exhibit A to a District
Resolution, which was a map. Mr. Young noted that during the 2024 election there was an
issue with which electoral area a property was in, and the court clerk could not find the map
attached to the Courts order. Mr. Young noted that the District Office had a map that
everyone believed to be Exhibit A but there was no way to confirm that. It was noted this map
just had lines drawn around the areas and it put some lots in two different areas which became
an issue in the last election. Mr. Young noted at that time the Board tasked the office to
identify freeholds in particular areas by lot number, street address, and parcel ID. Mr. Young
noted that this was a big job for the office taking approximately 1900 freeholds and assigning
each one to one of the 7 electoral areas and the Board should congratulate their staff for doing
such a good job. Mr. Young noted that he prepared a resolution that says the freeholds listed
on that file according to area are the freeholds within that electoral area. Mr. Young noted that
if the Board adopts this resolution, he will file a request with the court with a copy of the
resolution to get the court to issue an order clarifying the 1954 order establishing the District
to show that the District is composed of 7 areas. Mr. Young noted that the office also
prepared maps and those can give you a good idea of what area your lot is in, then you would
not have to look through all seven lists you can go straight to the list you think your lot is in.
Mr. Rasdall noted there were not new lines drawn, the lines were defined, and the cloudy
lines disappeared, meaning if you were on the edge between two areas that is now defined.

MOTION: Mr. Rasdall motioned to approve Resolution 2024-15
Clarifying Boundaries of Areas within the CSCD from which
Directors are Elected and Specifying the Frecholds Located
within in each Electoral Area, seconded by Mr. Maulden.



Discussion: Mr. Leavitt noted this was just a procedural step, and
it clears up some other issues in our Circuit Court file that are a
little cloudy.

Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

8. Wake Study Approval
a. Mr. Brumfield went over the lake study, he noted that Dr. Sweeten came to
the last meeting and answered questions, to help clarify things. Mr.
Brumfield noted he wanted to put this study to rest and take a vote pass or

fail.

i

il.

iii.

A freeholder in the audience noted he thought the wake study
was to determine what boats were making the wakes and asked
how the study was going to do that because at the last meeting it
was said there won’t be cameras on the actual buoys. Mr.
Brumfield noted they do not have cameras on the actual buoys
what they are going to do is similar to what Scott and the wake
committee did and run different types of boats at different
distances from the actual buoy and that would be a calculated
definite with the wave energy, the height, the duration, and
everything that buoy would get on that type of boat. There was
discussion over cost.

A freeholder asked if wake boats never existed, would this study
still happen. Mr. Brumfield noted that there is other stuff this
study is going to determine. Mr. Brumfield noted that anybody
who has been out on Sweetwater Lake during the weekend can
agree we have a lot of waves, no matter where they come from
wake boats, pontoons, whatever kind of boat it is, and a lot of
rules have been changed. Mr. Brumfield noted that they are the
Board of Director’s, he is an arborist by trade, and he doesn’t
know this topic and explained that they are reaching out to
somebody that knows that type of stuff and taking a path to get
actual data to see what the Board needs to do because without the
lakes we have nothing. Mr. Brumfield noted the lakes are worth
protecting and there are things in the study like suspended
phosphorus that would be tested and is stirred up by wave
actions. Mr. Brumfield noted the study includes doing a lidar
across the whole lake and seeing where the actual erosion is and
comparing it over three years. Mr. Brumfield noted this could
open the District up to grant money and discussed during 2008
when the flood. Mr. Leavitt discussed FEMA not giving any
grant money because at that time there wasn’t a survey or
anything to quantify it.

Mrs. Maulden read a letter from a freeholder, Shawn Rexroth
(OES 260) who was unable to be at the meeting. The letter stated
that at the last meeting Mr. Parris said to put the wake boat
sensors by the dam because that is the major concern, but he also
said no damage is being done to the dam by the inspector. Mrs.
Rexroth per her letter asked the Board to be cautious with this



iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

ix.

advice because this is not the only issue that was pointed out with
the wake committee survey on wake boats and how they are
detrimental to the community. Mrs. Rexroth noted in her later the
dam is the deepest part of the lake and will show less effect than
other areas, less sediment uptake and less wave force. Mrs.
Rexroth noted in the letter she believed the sensors needed to
reflect other areas of the lake not just the deepest parts. Mr.
Rexroth noted in her letter she did not believe the study will end
the cries for more wake boats on the Districts small lakes.

Mr. Maulden noted at the last Board meeting Dr. Sweeten was
present and he asked him about the cost and task not lining up
and he has not received any updated information on that. Mr.
Maulden noted there were things that he both liked and did not
like about the study. Mr. Maulden noted that he had no idea of
the cost for the task and how to strike it, so he does not know
how he votes on this.

Mr. Leavitt noted this document still did not represent the actual
contract that the Board would be entering.

Mr. Rasdall noted he agreed with Mr. Maulden there are parts of
this he likes and parts he does not like. Mr. Rasdall noted before
the Board decides and enters a contract, they should have total
clarity on what they are getting for each dollar spent.

A freeholder apologized and introduced himself as Mike Lawson.
Mr. Lawson noted that the Board was talking about deleting
items from the study that they don’t like but he believes that
doesn’t make since if this is a scientific study, unless the Board is
qualified to say what needs to be done. Mr. Lawson noted this
would negate the entire study. Mr. Lawson noted that Dr.
Sweeten was placing instruments in specific positions to take
specific measurements. Mr. Lawson noted that if this is a
scientific study and this guy is an expert he should be the one to
design the experiment. Mr. Brumfield noted that tasks 1-6 were
in correlation with questions the Board wanted answered from
the doing this study. Mr. Brumfield read through the questions.
Mr. Rasdall asked if he was correct in thinking the shoreline
study with lidar would qualify the District for FEMA assistance
in the future, but the wave motion would not play into FEMA
funds available. Mr. Brumfield noted that was not one of the
questions that the Board decided to ask Dr. Sweeten. Mr. Parris
noted he believed what Mr. Rasdall mentioned was accurate.

Mr. Sherman arrived and apologized for being late. Mr. Sherman
noted that looking at questions 1-4 every one of those has to do
with wake surfing. Mr. Sherman noted it was determined at the
last meeting these do not have cameras on them and there is no
way to determine if it is a wake boat that is surfing or if it is
someone tubing. Mr. Sherman noted his issue with that. Mr.
Sherman noted he understood the need for the study to help with
grants but the initial premise for this study was to determine the
difference between a wake board boat when somebody is surfing



and a ski boat pulling tubers. Mr. Sherman noted he did not know
how they could afford to spend that kind of money when the first
initial premise of the study was to determine if wake boats are a
detriment to the lakes and the dissipation of wakes with the
current wake course. Mr. Sherman noted that this was his issue;
he did not think the study was going to answer that question. Mr.
Brumfield noted that at the last meeting Dr. Sweeten answered
this question and no they do not have cameras on them, but the
study would entail running several boats at various sizes doing
different activities certain meters from the buoy that is collecting
data and that is the way they are going to identify this. Mr.
Sherman noted that that data will be collected continuously and
there is no way to know from that data whether the actual damage
that is being considered is being done by wake boats; Mr.
Sherman noted he believed this is a lot of money to spend when
the initial premise is not being answered.

Xx. Mr. Maulden noted that when the study first came out, he
believed there would be cameras on the buoys and that they
would know the strength of the wake and which boats were
causing it. Mr. Maulden noted he believed it would be basically
useless data because they still wouldn’t know which boats are
causing the large wakes, all it will tell them is that the lakes are
busy 5 months out of the year on Saturday. Mr. Maulden noted
that he would still like some of the tasks in the study done like
the lidar, but the Board doesn’t know what that would cost.

MOTION: Mr. Sherman motioned to table the approval of the
study until the next meeting and get more specific information
that the Board will need, seconded by Mr. Adolay. Roll Call:

Pat Sherman: Aye

Mark Rasdall: Aye

Jim Maulden: Aye

Ted Adolay: Aye

Aaron Parris: Aye

Randy Brumfield: Nay

Michael Leavitt: Aye
Motion Passes 6-1.

9. Board Member Concerns
a. Mr. Sherman mentioned that he had a conversation with Kevin, who was
looking at policies and procedures for Marshalls and was wondering if the
Board could have an executive session before the next Board Meeting, so
that Kevin cand discuss with the Board what he would propose. There was
discussion. The Board decided to hold an Executive Session on August 20"
prior to the Board meeting.

10. Adjourn (7:08 PM)



MOTION: Mr. Sherman moved to adjourn, seconded by Mr.
Parris. Motion passed unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

Ted Adolay, Board Secretary
Date Submitted:



Cordry Sweetwater Conservancy

Building Commission Minutes
August 6, 2024

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m.

Present: Cully Kinnick, Pat Sherman (Board), Kathy Wood (CSLOA) and Nick Johann BCO.
Absent: Dennis Cameron

Guests: Ryan Cummings, Mike Fouch, and Jim Ray.

Acceptance of July minutes. Mr. Kinnick made a motion to accept the July 2%, 2024, minutes. Mrs. Wood
seconded. Motion passed.

Freeholder Comments: A Freeholder discussed a sign at 8403 Centerlake advertising firewood for sale and
how it may violate CSCD covenants or Brown County zoning. The commission discussed the topic and would
like it brought to the CSCD Board.

New Business: Mr. Fouch asked if he would be able to install a storage shed on his Fox Ct. property. There was
a discussion about storage facilities on undeveloped lots. Mr. Sherman will take this to the Board to be
discussed.

Dredging Applications:

D24-007, D24-008, D24-009

Mpr. Kinnick made a motion to recommend approval of dredging applications D24-007, D24-008, D24-009.
Mrs. Woods seconded the motion. Motion passed.

New Applications:

24-058 — WS 285 — Stamper — 6521 Loon Dr.
This project is to install a boat lift.
Mpr. Kinnick made a motion to approve application 24-058. Mrs. Wood seconded. The motion passed

unanimously.

24-059 — CE 44 — Young — 7478 Haw Dr.
This project is to replace the attached upper deck and stairs.
Mrs. Woods made a motion to approve application 24-059. Mr. Kinnick seconded. The motion passed

unanimously.

24-060 — WS 303/304 —-Knight — 6450 Loon Dr.

This project is to build a dock addition.
Mrs. Woods made a motion to recommend approval of application 24-060. Mr. Kinnick seconded. The motion
passed unanimously.



24-061 — CD50-51 — McAllister — 7442 Honey Locust Dr.

This project is to build a 24 X 36’ home addition.
Mrs. Wood made a motion to approve application 24-061. Mr. Kinnick seconded. The motion passed
unanimously.

24-062 — AA 57 — Rogers — 7916 Nettle Dr.

This project is to build a new dock and boat shelter.
Mpr. Kinnick made a motion to approve application 24-062. Mrs. Wood seconded. The motion passed
unanimously.

24-063 — CD 15 — Goettman — 7636 Hornbeam Dr.

This project is to build a home addition.
Mprs. Woods made a motion to approve application 24-063. Mr. Kinnick seconded. The motion passed
unanimously.

24-064 — Cummings — 8453 Centerlake Rd.
This project is to build a 128 SqFt dock.
Mpr. Kinnick made a motion to recommend approval of application 24-064 subject to the dock not exceeding 20’
from the water line and review of the rules not stating “lake structures only on water designated lots.” Mrs.
Woods seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

24-065 — WS 524-526 — Witter — 6243 Bunting Dr.

This project is to build a home addition.
Mrs. Wood made a motion to approve application 24-065 pending a Brown County Permit. Mr. Kinnick
seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

Variance Requests: None

Old Business:

Old Applications:

23-016 - WS 523 - Kern - 6240 Cardinal Dr.

Stop Work Orders: None

Complaints: None

Freeholder Comments: None

Building Commissioners Comments:

As there was no other business before the Commission, Mrs. Woods motioned to adjourn, and Mr. Kinnick
seconded. The meeting was adjourned at 7:45 p.m.

The next Building Commission meeting will be September 3%, at 6:00 p.m. at the CSCD Office.

Respectfully Submitted,
Nick Johann BCO

*Note these minutes are not official until voted on at the September meeting.



>

moa w

=

MINUTES
ECOLOGY COMMISSION MONTHLY MEETING
Cordry Sweetwater Conservancy District
1 Aug, 2024

The monthly meeting of the CSCD Ecology Commission was called to order by Randy Brumfield at 6:00 P.M., in the
CSCD conference room.

Members Present; Randy Brumfield, Shena Johnson, Brenda Maulden, Ty Cooper, Charlie Tinkle, Matt Murtha,
and Jim Donnells ( Recorder )

Members Absent: None
Others In Attendance: Nick Johann ( CSCD Operations ) + 4 Guests

(6:05 PM. ) Shena Johnson moved to approve the Minutes of the 11 July, 2024 meeting of the CSCD
Ecology Commission; Brenda Maulden seconded. This motion was unanimously approved.

(6:05 P.M.) FREEHOLDER CONCERNS:

1. Jim Maulden inquired about ADA ( handicap ) parking locations at the beach and marina. After discussion, he
agreed to bring this topic up at their next SECURITY Commission meeting.

2. Charlie Tinkle raised the issue of poor largemouth bass fishing in CSCD lakes. and especially bad in Cordry
Lake. He suggested a monthly bass-culling tournament for the Anglers Club, whereby the Club would take and
remove as many small (12” and under ) largemouth bass from our lakes as possible, to work to improve the quality
( size ) of remaining largemouth bass. He did acknowledge that panfish ( e.g. bluegill, crappie, etc. ) fishing is still
good in both lakes. Nick Johann agreed to contacta DNR conservation officer to check on the legality of such a
move,

(6:30 P. M. ) OLD BUSINESS:

1. CSCD OPERATIONS REPORT: Nick Johann provided updates on myriad projects of interest to ECOLOGY
including:

a. Aquatic Control completed its second aquatic weed survey of the year to identify where American Pondweed is
thriving in coves and swimming areas of our CSCD lakes. They will be applying weed control herbicides on Monday,
5 August, to eliminate pondweed in those areas deemed problematic to freeholders, boaters, and swimmers.

b. A freeholder had contacted Nick about a problematic leech infestation in their cove (between Alder & Aspen Drives).
Brenda Maulden located, online, a very informative essay written by a biologist, that deals with this issue, and emailed it to
the freeholder in question. It can be located at: htips:/nhlakes.org/wp-content/uploads/4-Lake-Ecology-Native-Species-
Leeches-NH-LAKES.pdf . Perhaps the most important takeaway from this essay is “... The easiest and safest way to
reduce leech populations is to make sure you and your neighbors do not rake leaves, grass clippings, or other organic

debris into the lake.”

c. Cordry Lake Spillway: The long-awaited bidding process for this $ 2.3 million ( +/- } project has begun. Bids by
contractors to perform this spillway rebuild project are due no later than 7 August. The Board will consider all bids and
select one on 14 August, with work to begin ( if all goes well ) the second week of September. The project specs dictate that
Cordry Lake, if lowered to perform this work, will not be dropped more than 2 feet from normal pool. Nick Johann will
alert all freeholders of the potential impact on boating and driving ( closed road over the dam ) as this project progresses.
The CSCD Board is exploring funding options. The goal is to have Cordry Lake Spillway rebuild work finished this
fall/winter, after boating season, and if nature cooperates, the lake raised to normal pool height by spring.

d. Status of ECOLOGY Commission Budget Proposals for FY 2025: At the last Board meeting, all budget proposals
from the various commissions were read for the first time. At this point, no cuts to those proposals have been suggested or
made. Dueto the proposed expansion ofthe CSCD “salt barn,” it is probable that the recycle bins will have to be relocated

2. (6:45P.M.)CSCD RULES REVIEW PROJECT ( Shena ): The joint effort of the SECURITY Commission and
ECOLOGY Commission to update and consolidate into one, online, easily accessible Rule Book, all the “rules” in effect in
the CSCD continues. This month’s task is to review all the CSCD Board MINUTES from the last 15 years to identify and
pull out “rules decisions” made by the various CSCD Boards in meetings through the years for incorporation into the
updated, new Rule Book. Each member present was given a paper copy of one year’s Board MINUTES, with instructions to
comb them for any/all rules decisions that need to be incorporated into the finished product. Results are due back to the

CSCD office by our next monthly commission meeting.
OVER >>>

3. (6:50 P. M. ) POLLINATOR HABITAT UPDATE ( Brenda): The 3-acre pollinator site has been mowed and
herbicide has been applied to eradicate all vegetative growth. A second application will be needed to completely kill all




unwanted vegetation, after which the area should be ready for pollinator seeding, hopefully this fall/winter. The committee
is looking into designating a parking area at the north end of the pollinator site. Brenda has begun to look into appropriate
seeds to purchase based on the recommendations of Emily Jacob, a biologist with “Quails Forever & Pheasants Forever,”
The committee continues to develop a comprehensive plan for the creation of this Pollinator Habitat resource.

4.(6:55P. M.) The special fundingof the “SHORELINE EROSION STUDY,” proposed by Doctor Sweeten of
Ecosystems Connections Institute, LL.C in Denver, Indiana has been tentatively approved by the CSCD Board. Several
specific details ofthe techniques used to collect this environmental study are being worked out before the contract is signed.

5.(7:00 P.M. ) ANIMAL CONTROL MEASURES: Shenareports that “Rusty” ( owner of Rusty’s Animal Control
(RAC) has agreed to oversee the annual “Deer Reduction Hunt,” in CSCD again this fall/winter. The proposed dates for
this archery-only reduction hunt are 1-17 November, 2024 and 4-12 January, 2025. Arequired archery hunter qualification
date of 21 September ( 10:00 A.M. — 12:00 noon ) was also proposed. All dates were approved by the ECOLOGY
Commission, pending the final approval by the CSCD Board. Planning for this hunt is underway.

6. (7:00 P. M. ) SUMMARY OF BOAT STEWARD BOAT/TRAILER INSPECTION FINDINGS : ( Jim ) Jim
Donnells handed out a 1-page sheet that summarizes all the results of boat and trailer inspections conducted thus farin 2024
by the boat stewards, hired to help keep zebra mussels out of our lakes. He requested that commission members review the
data presented and email him comments and observations gleaned from the data that will be useful to the Zebra Mussel
Prevention Committee when they next meet to review the overall effectiveness of the ZM Prevention Program

H. (7:05P.M.) NEW BUSINESS :

L

1. DREDGING APPLICATIONS:

a. Shena Johnson moved to APPROVE dredging application D24-10 submitted by Berris
Properties / Kara Paris on lots WS 176 & 177 ( 7052 Eagle Dr. ), as submitted. Charlie
Tinkle seconded. This motion was unanimously approved.

b. Shena Johnson moved to APPROVE dredging application D24-11 submitted by Lisa
Michaelis on lot I 49 (8156 Bass Dr. ), as submitted. Charlie Tinkle seconded. This
motion was unanimously approved.

c. Shena Johnson moved to APPROVE dredging application D24-12 submitted by Jeff
Haynes on lot WS 531 (6233 Bobwhite Dr. ), as submitted. Charlie Tinkle seconded.

This motion was unanimously approved.
2. (7:10P.M.) COMMISSION MEMBER CONCERNS:

a. Brenda Maulden offered compliments to CSCD for the new signage located around the CSCD. Nick
reported that the new signs are the work of Jeff Dollens, a CSCD employee.

b. Brenda Maulden also updated the commission on the recent approval by the Brown County Commissioners
for Off Road Vehicles ( ORVs) to be operated on county roads, including in CSCD. Stipulations for
this ORV authorization can be found at the Brown County Government website.

ADJOURNMENT: Shena Johnson moved to adjourn the 1 August, meeting of the Ecology Commission. Matt Murtha
seconded. The motion passed. The meeting was adjourned at 7:20 P.M.

Respectfully Submitted:

JIM DONNELLS
Commission Recorder



Cordry-Sweetwater Conservancy District

8377 CORDRY DRIVE NINEVEH, IN 46164 PHONE:
317-933-2893 FAX: 317-933-3628

Roads Commission Meeting
August 1, 2024

Present: Nick Johann, Mark Rasdall (Board), Greg Harper, Larry Trueblood, and Eric Vonhoven
(CSLOA)

Absent: Dave Jarrett, Larry Trueblood, and Eric Vonhoven (CSLOA)
Guests: Dan Norman.
There were not enough commission members for a quorum.

1) Freeholder Comments

A. Dan Norman asked for a speed bump on Grey Wolf after it is paved.

Director of Operations Report

- Mr. Johann gave an update on the 2024 paving. The contractor thought it would be after Labor Day
when they can start.

- Mr. Johann recommended adding crack sealing to the 2026 budget.

Commission Members Comments

None

Page| 1



Cordry-Sweetwater Conservancy District
Security Commission Meeting
August 13", 2024

. Members Present: Jim Maulden, Cathie Brown, Brian Clancy, Harry Sherman, Tom Quill, and Jo
Ann Hamilton

. Members Absent: Steve Burke

. Also, Present:

a. Staff: Brittany Bay & Rusty Morrison

b. 7 freeholders in attendance (Brenda Maulden, Sharon Vankooten, Nancy Quill, Rob Seet,
Jennifer Seet, Matt Petersen and Carrie Vavul)

. Welcome: Mr. Clancy called the meeting to order at 6:06 PM.

. Agenda Modifications:

a. Mr. Clancy noted he would like to add under new business Staff Report/Updates and to
have the freeholders’ concerns in two parts, the first part being general freeholder concerns
and the second part being frecholders appealing violations. Mr. Maulden noted he would
like to add at the end of meeting discussions what stays on the agenda for next month.

. Approval of Minutes:

a. There Commission reviewed the July Commission Meeting Minutes.

MOTION: Mr. Quill motioned to approve the July 9%, 2024,
Security Commission Minutes, as submitted, seconded by Mr.
Maulden. Motion passed S-0.

. Freeholder Concerns:

a. Sharon VanKooten (165) noted she was interested in the ADA parking at
the boat ramps, because she believes something needs to be done to
accommodate people with mobility issues.

b. Jenifer & Rob Seet (WS 280) introduced themselves. Mrs. Seet noted
they were the freeholders who had an incident at Sweetwater boat ramp
with her husband’s father and they had posted about it on Facebook, and
noted they attended the meeting tonight to support a handicap spot or at
least a spot for people with mobility issues. Mr. Seet noted that over the
weekend his brother drove their father, who has mobility issues, over to
the ramp while trying to help him get to the dock another freeholder
became sarcastic with them about where they parked. Mr. Seet noted that
they would just really like to see some parking signage for people with
challenges or disabilities or the elderly in a few spots. Mr. Seet noted
that there did not need to be a bunch of money spent on these just
reasonable accommodations and referenced the Americans with
Disabilities Act. Mr. Maulden noted he spoke with Josh Bryant and he



looked into getting an estimate for putting something in at the marinas.
There was some discussion about a ramp being added to the Sweetwater
marina area. Mrs. Bay noted that if you made the marina area a
loading/unloading zone it would take away some of the liability
expenditures and risk. Mr. Maulden mentioned that was another idea
they were looking into. Mr. Clancy thanked the Seets for coming and
speaking about their incident and that the commission members would
speak more about this topic when they get to new business.

8. Old Business:

a. 2025 Budget

1.

Mr. Maulden noted the biggest pushback on the security budget
that he was getting from the Board of Directors was purchasing
a new rhib boat when they are anticipating the Cordry dam
spillway project expenditure. There was a discussion on the
Budget process. Mrs. Bay noted that before September 7% the
maximum budget must be submitted to DLGF, the budget can
decrease after this but not increase. Mrs. Bay noted that the
Public Hearing on the 2025 budget would be at the September
Board Meeting and then the Adoption of the 2025 budget
would be at the October Board Meeting. There was discussion
over a new engine for the Sweetwater rhib boat.

Mr. Sherman requested adding purchasing a new engine in the
amount of $12,000 for the Sweetwater rhib boat be added to the
budget if they remove the $50,000 rhib boat. There was
discussion over the need for a new engine.

MOTION: Mr. Sherman motioned to modify the 2025 security
budget from $149,050 to $51,050 by striking the rhib boat and
dock and adding a new engine for the Sweetwater rhib boat.

3. Mr. Sherman asked about the lighted buoys and expressed he

believed there was a need for more. Mr. Maulden noted he did
not care for the lighted buoys and believed they were light
pollution.

Motion seconded by Mr. Maulden. Motion passed 6-0.

4. Mr. Maulden mentioned that Mr. Sherman wanted to further

discuss the lighted buoys in case the commission wanted to add
more to the budget.

i. Mr. Sherman noted that from a safety standpoint
he believed the lighted buoys are good for the
lakes. Mr. Maulden noted that the state lakes do
not have lighted buoys. There was discussion of
the cost difference in lighted versus regular buoys.
There was discussion on the lifetime of the buoys.
Mrs. Bay noted there are currently no back up
buoys. Mr. Morrison noted that from his



perspective he would like to see the lighted buoys
on the points of the lakes. Mr. Clancy mentioned
to Mr. Sherman if he wants to make a motion to
increase the amount buoys, he could, but his
concern is want versus need and with how much
money is about to be spent on the dam this may be
more of a want than a need. Mrs. Bay noted that in
the 2025 budget there is enough funds to cover 4
lighted buoys and 25 regular buoys.

MOTION: Mr. Sherman motioned budget for 10 lighted buoys
and 15 regular buoys, seconded by Mrs. Brown.

Discussion: Mr. Clancy noted that we would be going from the
currently budgeted 29 buoys to 25 buoys and the budget would
increase by $5,000. Mr. Quill noted that he likes the lighted ones
too but it sounds like there is more of a need for quantity at this
time. Mr. Maulden noted that it appeared we could be down
buoys because lighted buoys are what has been being purchased
and fewer of them are ordered because of cost. Mrs. Bay noted
that one of the buoy reps has a special on the light toppers right
now to test those out. The commission was in agreement to
purchase and test out the light toppers.

Motion Rescinded: Mr. Sherman rescinds his motion.

b. Flock Cameras
1. Mrs. Bay noted that there are two cameras that are undergoing
maintenance. Mrs. Bay noted that this maintenance is included
in the annual fee.
2. Mr. Clancy noted that all law enforcement now has access to
the flock cameras.

c¢. Body Cam Review for Beach Attendants and Boat Patrol
1. Mrs. Bay noted that the body cameras were working out great
for the beach staff. Mrs. Bay also noted that they are not
working out so well for the boat patrol staff, Mrs. Bay
mentioned that the boat patrol staff can only hear what is being
said on the patrol boat; you cannot hear what is being said on
the boat that has been stopped. Mrs. Bay gave a body camera to
the commission to look at and test. Mr. Morrisson went over
the body camera in good detail and showed that it is very easy
to utilize. Mrs. Brown and Mr. Morrison were both in
agreement that this one is easy to use but is not good for the
purpose they were purchased, which is to hear what is said on
the other boat. Mr. Clancy noted that they are still in the return
window, and this will be trial and error. Mr. Clancy noted we



cannot just accept this when it is not working and find
something that will.

Mr. Clancy and Mr. Sherman both discussed the possibility of
getting a step up from the one we purchased if that was
possible.

Mr. Clancy asked about the recording procedure, and Mr.
Morrison noted he did not record every encounter. Mr. Clancy
noted that one of the things that sold this to the community was
the transparency where if someone were to say boat patrol was
rude, we would have the camera to possible to disprove that
and noted he believed every encounter should be recorded. Mr.
Clancy noted that he believed the standard operating procedure
for this should be recording of every encounter.

Mr. Morrison suggested reaching out to other agencies that use
body cameras on the water and seeing what they use. Mr.
Clancy noted the focus should be looking at what we spent on 3
and seeing if we can order a different one from the same
company.

Mr. Clancy noted that Mrs. Bay and himself can look into other
alternatives for homework.

d. Buoy Numbers/Tape Review

1.

Mr. Clancy noted that he liked the fact that they cut the
reflective tape before applying it to the buoys and he the
numbers being on the side. Mr. Maulden noted that when the
tape was cut in half it’s the size of the original tape that comes
on the buoys. Mr. Sherman noted they looked great. The
commission was on board to continue with this project.

Mr. Quill requested that more numbers be ordered because
there are two sets going on each buoy and they have not started
on Cordry yet.

e. UTV/ORYV Review

1.

Mr. Maulden reviewed the new Brown County Ordinance that
was passed. Mr. Maulden noted that he and his wife Brenda
attended all four meetings held on this topic. Mr. Maulden
noted that on July 17" Brown County was the 80" of 92
counties to approve this. Mr. Maulden noted that this does not
include golf carts. Mr. Maulden noted the requirements to be
eligible to drive ORV’s. Mr. Maulden noted that Brenda had
been monitoring the paper and has no seen any complaints in
the opinion section or the Sheriffs log. There was discussion
over the vin check for these vehicles being the same procedure
as a vin check for watercraft.

f. Temporary Speed Bumps at Grizzly

1.

Mr. Maulden noted that he has heard a lot of positive feedback
on the speedbump. Mr. Maulden noted many people have been
asking to have them installed. Maulden noted he spoke with



Mark Rasdall to see if they could get a quote on installing these
permanently and then the commission could discuss installing
them on the side drives.

Mr. Clancy asked how this would affect the plows. Mr.
Maulden noted there are different types and there are ones that
are more like a table. Mr. Maulden noted that he believed it
would be something roads and security could work on together.
Mr. Maulden noted that Nick Johann attends roads too and he
asked Mark if this was something they could look at and then
decide if this is something they should pursue. Mr. Quill noted
that he believed pursuing this would depend on whether they
will tear up the plows.

Mr. Maulden noted that everyone needs to share the roads,
there are no sidewalks here and people should be able to
exercise, walk, and ride their bikes.

g. Stationary Cam at Beach

1.

Mrs. Bay noted that the installation of the stationary camera
would be happening Thursday, and these ones do have sound.

2. There was discussion over vandalism at the beach.

9. New Business:

a. ADA Parking at Beach and Boat Ramps

h.

Mr. Clancy asked Sharon Vankooten if she had anything to add
to this topic since she had mentioned this topic interested her
during freeholder concerns. Mrs. Vankooten noted that she had
expressed all of her concerns at the beginning of the meeting
during freeholder concerns. Mr. Maulden noted that he asked
Mrs. Vankooten to attend the meetings because while she isn’t
an attorney she has experience in that area. Mrs. Vankooten
noted she has a paralegal certificate, and volunteers at a
Christian Legal Clinic but she cannot provide legal advice. Mr.
Maulden noted that Mrs. Vankooten could tell the commission
if she believed they should consult an attorney before they
make a decision.

There was discussion about parking in the grassy area by the
contractor's ramp.

Mr. Maulden noted that once you put an ADA sign out there is
liability if the ramp, the parking lot or other things are not
exactly right. Mr. Maulden noted they discussed this at ecology
and that the district could make the sign say anything and gave
the example of senior citizen parking.

There was a discussion over parking at the Sweetwater marina.
Mr. Clancy requested that Mrs. Bay see how many parking
spots would fit in the marina area.

There was discussion over the quote for the pavement that Josh
Bryant provided to the commission. It was noted this was just a
quote for the pavement only, this quote did not include railing
or anything else. Mr. Quill noted that right now everything is



use at your own risk. There was more discussion on the liability
to put up ADA signage. Mr. Clancy asked legally by law does
the conservancy have to have handicap parking. It was noted
that the conservancy is private, Mrs. Bay noted that once the
conservancy puts ADA signage up it has to become completely
compliant. Mr. Maulden noted that is also what Nick Johann
had previously said that we didn't put the signs up because then
we would have to be fully compliant and if someone were to
complain about a crack in the sidewalk then it could be an
issue. Mrs. Bay discussed calling these areas loading/unloading
zones and putting up signage to that affect this would allow for
people with mobility issues, senior citizens, or people with
disabilities to have a closer area to park and board a
watercraft.

b. Smoking at the Beach Review

1.

Mr. Clancy noted that he had discussed the smoking on the
beach issue with Amy Sherman-Williams, CSCD beach
attendant. Mr. Clancy noted he believed an area we have as a
family area where there are young kids should not allow
smoking at all. Mr. Clancy mentioned the beach is open air but
plenty of other places that have open air do not allow smoking
and gave the example of baseball games.

Mr. Clancy noted he was prepared to make a motion to ban
smoking but asked about vaping and for the commission to
discuss. Mr. Morrison asked for clarification on if the beach
was everything from the road to the water or if the parking was
excluded in what is considered the beach. Mr. Maulden noted
he believed the parking lot should be excluded from what is
considered the beach. There was discussion on not allowing
smoking on any CSCD property. Carrie Vavul asked about
designated areas with the cigarette poles, Mrs. Vavul noted that
she does not smoke but smoking is still a legal activity. Mrs.
Brown asked about the consequences if someone was smoking
on the beach and not in the designated areas. Mr. Maulden
noted that the beach attendant would ask them to leave. Mr.
Quill noted that the designated smoking areas would be in the
parking lot, and the grassy area to the road and there would be
butt cans put in that area. Mr. Clancy noted that the
consequence should at first be an education of the new smoking
rule, and then if it happens again and they have been told the
attendant asks for their beach pass; Mr. Clancy noted this was
an ask, tell, make policy. Mrs. Brown asked about vaping.
Brenda Maulden noted that all smoking signs she has seen
include vapes/e-cigarettes.

MOTION: Mr. Sherman motioned to approve
recommending to the Board to ban smoking/vaping at the



beach and shelter house area and to put up signage to this
affect, seconded by Mrs. Brown.

Discussion: Mr. Clancy noted there should be some
homework to see the costs of the cigarette butt cans.

Motion passed unanimously 6-0.

¢. Boat Patrol Towing Release & Training

1.

The commission reviewed the towing form that the CSCD
attorney prepared for boat patrol to have freeholders sign before
towing their watercraft.

Mrs. Bay asked for clarification on the towing release form
because boat patrol has asked why every passenger on the
watercraft needed to sign the form. There was discussion on
that verbiage being included and having all passengers sign
because a passenger could fall out, or a rope could hit them,
during towing, different liabilities.

Mr. Clancy asked about training for towing watercraft. Mr.
Morrison went over the training procedure for towing another
watercraft.

d. CSCD Lake Security - Lake Patrol Sticker Change

1.

2.

Mrs. Bay noted that the new patches saying CSCD Boat Patrol
have been ordered.

Mr. Maulden asked if the boat patrol uniforms would also be
changed to say boat patrol. Mrs. Bay noted the uniforms
already have CSCD boat patrol on them. There was discussion
over a badge on the boat patrol shirts, there was discussion of a
badge Mr. Morrison designed with the Indiana State Seal. Mrs.
Bay showed the commission the current style of shirt with a
badge, the CSCD logo, and verbiage of boat patrol on them.
Mr. Maulden noted the current shirts have boat patrol on them
not lake safety which was the issue. Mr. Clancy noted that he
believed the boat patrol staff could discuss if they wanted to
change the logos on their shirts.

e. Loose Dogs

1.

Mr. Clancy discussed the loose dog issue. Mrs. Bay noted that
animal control had to be called a week ago for a report to be
made because a staff member was bitten by a loose dog. Mr.
Maulden noted there is not a leash law, people just have to have
their dog under control. Mr. Maulden noted that this is a
countywide issue. Mr. Maulden noted that there is one animal
control officer within the county. Mr. Quill noted the animal
control officer could cite the dog owner, and eventually they
may have to go to court.

f. Adding Buoy Northwest End of Sweetwater

1.

Mr. Maulden noted Nick Johann received a message from a
freeholder on Grosbeak where a buoy sits behind a dock



requesting another buoy be added for safety reasons. There was
discussion over adding one in front of the docks. Mr. Maulden
suggested moving the buoy from in the cove out past the
docks.

g. CSCD Full Time Employee Lake Use

1. Mr. Maulden noted that he had a full-time employee of the
CSCD come to him and let him know he had been here several
years and takes pride and ownership in his work here at the
lakes and asked if there was any way that he could launch his
boat on the lakes. Mr. Maulden noted that he and Brenda had
been reviewing old minutes and back in 2011 this was a
discussion topic that had a 3-2 vote with two Board members
absent during the vote. Mr. Maulden noted that he had told the
employee he could not make any promises, but he would bring
this topic to security.

MOTION: Mr. Maulden motioned to approve recommending
that full-time employees that have been employed at the district
for more than 1-year will be allowed to purchase 1 motorized boat
decal or 2 nonmotorized boat decals, they must pass the zebra
mussel test, the boat safety test, follow all CSCD rules, and the
employee must be present when decaled watercraft is being
operated on the lakes; their decals will be revoked for one
violation on the lakes and decals will terminate if the employee is
terminated.

Discussion: There was a discussion of lot numbers on employee
watercraft and utilizing the CSCD Office lot number. Brenda
Maulden noted that she knows the employees who work here, and
they are dedicated, they answer phones after hours, they come in
after hours, they take pride, and ownership and feel like this is
their community too. Mr. Quill noted he believed this is a good
idea and an incentive for employees. Mr. Clancy noted he
believed it would be a good idea, and they would be following the
rules; they would launch their boat, take it off overnight, they’re
not docking it at a friend’s house. There was discussion over the
type of motorized watercraft, Mr. Maulden noted they would get
one decal whether it be pontoon, fishing, or speed. Mrs. Hamilton
asked if the employees would have to take the zebra mussel test
and follow the cleaning procedure since they are taking the boat
in and out of the lakes. Mr. Maulden noted that the employees
would have to follow the same rules as everybody else.

Motion seconded by Mr. Clancy.

Motion passed unanimously.



10. Commission Member Concerns:

1. Rusty Morrison asked about suction cup flag on the operator
side acting as the spotter, and he believes that is an issue. Mr.
Maulden noted that the operator should not be acting as the
spotter. Rusty noted that it is unsafe for people to be pulled
behind the boat entering the marina. There was a discussion.
Mr. Clancy asked Mrs. Bay to send out alerts on this topic just
reminding everyone they can not be behind the boat because it
is a safety issue. Mr. Quill noted that this should be taken to the
Board to make this an official rule that boats entering the
marina should have no one towed behind them whether on tube
or rope. Mr. Maulden requested this be added to the agenda.

2. Mr. Sherman noted he believed that the boat patrol with
purchased or rented high quality cameras could take pictures
and help with the erosion study instead paying $61,000. Mr.
Clancy noted that he did not know if that was a discussion for
the security commission. Mr. Sherman noted he did not think it
should cost $61,000 to run a drone around the lakes. Mr.
Maulden noted that the drone alone was not $61,000. Mr. Quill
noted there was a lot more to the first year of the study than just
the drone, Mr. Quill noted there would be lidar and other
things. Mr. Sherman asked what the Cordry Lake residents are
doing with their boats during the dam repairs and if the district
was going to do anything to help. Mr. Clancy noted he did not
believe that was for the commission to worry about. Mr. Quill
asked if Mr. Sherman believed it was the Conservancy’s
responsibility to store boats during the dam repair. Mr.
Sherman noted that lately there has been a lot of discussion
about community, and it would be nice to offer these residents
a temporary place to park their boats during the repairs. Mr.
Clancy noted that what could be done is offer a list of storage
facilities where their boats could be stored during the repair
because it is not the Conservancy’s responsibility to store their
boats. Brenda Maulden mentioned that the Conservancy would
be liable for the boats if something happened to the boats, and
they were stored on Conservancy property. Mr. Sherman
discussed the possibility of a CSCD marshal and if the
commission should consider budgeting for a vehicle of the
position. There was discussion of the age of the vehicles. Mrs.
Bay noted that the 3 oldest patrol vehicles were sold on
govdeals and they still had the 2021 Dodge Ram and the 2019
Durango. Mr. Maulden noted that the Board is discussing
marshals. Mr. Clancy noted that if there are vehicles not being
utilized then they should be sold.

3. Mr. Maulden discussed personal buoys. Mr. Maulden noted that
there was discussion at past meetings if freeholders brought to
the commission an area where a CSCD buoy should go because
of dangerous shallow areas, sea walls, etc. then the commission
would review that area and decide if a buoy was warranted. Mr.



Maulden noted that there had been two requests, and he had
gone out and checked by both sea walls and the water was over
48” deep. Mr. Quill noted that its 4-feet now it may go down
another foot and at that depth he didn’t believe a buoy would be
needed.

4. Mrs. Brown discussed watercraft in the no wake zone pulling
tubes and having more than two people on either the tube or the
rope. Mrs. Brown noted she believes this is a real issue and a
ticketable offense and suggested an alert be made about this as
well because a lot of freeholders think the rule does not apply if
they are in the no wake zone.

11. Adjourn (9:08 PM)

MOTION: Mr. Clancy moved to adjourn, seconded by Mrs.
Brown. Motion passed unanimously.



TYgH3IA
LLEED

vayan
IvEY3AN
IvEH3IA

IvaY3aA
Tvad3aa

LCEED
vayan

vayan

vadaA

IvaN3aA

ONILI3N 6/2 B

ol a3g 0Q NO 02 ALIMNIIS <~ GINSSI LINOIL

REED

TYEH3IA

RCEER

Tvay3A
LCEED

EER
WEH3IA

IaY3AA

vad3an

vaNaA

ALEEDY

Iva¥aA

vaY3A
vayaa
IVEY3A
Tvay3A

TvayIA

WEY3IA

TYBYIA
IWEYIA
WEBYIA
eY3IA

HIOOQ OL SAN QIINVIWOIIV /SHIBNNN LIVW Ms dans ¥32 SM NOG 5058 VIVY9.0 MIUANY % NHOrM YTOTZLL
107 {0 SLIHOVT 3417 ON INOZ VM ON NI
Q334ov LIVA Ms 1IvdDHI LY 201 MS LVUNSNW 2569 WYH3NAJ aaoL ¥2o0z/SIL
AQv3d ASHL 'dOLS ONING WOYH AVMY 'NOLLD3S
3NV 40 31aAIN NI LWILLY LX3N LdvLs
01 1v0d a31234I0 'INIOd GNINS ¥vaN HIUIN3D
40 1437 dn Q3AN3 LyO8 3SUN0D 40 SNINID3I8
1¥ H3JHUNS VM QIONIIHIXINGSTIVE IdILINW
3¥YM CN NI 1SVd 001 AHLYD AHQHOD NOOLNOd S£av ANYIGADVH 86EL AFHLINS ZINVHAILS 3 TL Yo/l
INOZ 3701 CiNI ONIKROD NMOG MOTS O1 A3SIANGY WoL Ms 1AHOHALSYIN 957 SM 2719V 6002 NIDLSNY 1¥380Y ¥2OZ/SIL
HINMC 10T ¥3HLONY ANZNE AdQHOD 1I7HOHILSYIN oA LndIvH 9222 SAVH ATH343D ¢ AHLW YZoUPIL
A8 O3SSINLIM SAONS ANOAIE ONIOD ¥3ADIS
30IS INO NO ATNC # 1071 PERD AMTHOD NOOLNOd eel Ssvd 1¥08 MY H390Y ¥ZoTeIL
OVd ONISIVE NI AV130 JUEE: ] Ms ERLE\ -1 e} FTMS JIOM AIHO 2989 HIAMVYS #202/62/9
ITIHOIN ¥ STTUVHD
QuvOod NO $04d ON FLEE): ] JONYD ee v MVd Mvd 0082 JUVHNO0T vONIYE 20211219
U3HLOW WOX4 §Tvo3a WOL  AYQHOD AVH YIS oF v WYO 1g8L HITSIFH 3LLINAT 2 Q0L 20219119
M3N ALY OL INOH QINANLIY $TvD3A Q10
IATIYLIY OL INOH QaNANLIH WoL  AYJH0D Qyv0831aavd VL) 90 AYYIHD NVIONI 9692 AY13d T3INVa ¥ 30NP ¥202/91/9
Jyvod 370AdYd NO HOVI 3411 HO S# LOTON
13S TV 3dY AIHL ¥3LYM IHL HILNT ALSNY Ms YHYWYA 66T MS KVZZ1go #2939 S3INOI ¥SIT 7 AZJ443r (2404 4V ]
AIHL NIHA LYHL OS dN O¥1d LvHL IAVH OL DV
IHL 40 INOZ IMS NI NIHM ‘Y3 1vA 3HL GIY3LINT
L1ON SYH HAS HONOHL NIAT QIWHONI
Qyv0d 370Avd NO Qdd 40 SHIBWNN LOTON ANIH8  AJQHOD QYv0831aQvd 09500 AYOMOH 162 NOLONINN3d INVHS $20CIrL9
1v08 d3ZINOLOW NO STv03Q QIZIHOLOW NON 1N3¥8 AYQHOD NOOLNOd 991 WNYa 0204  L138X0D INITHYQ ' NHOM ¥202/¥L/9
0d4d ONIKIFAN HONNYY IN3¥8 AYAHOD HIAA 02 2MO SSvd 06€8 HOIWOY A3ddd3r y20Z¥ L9
01 1N08Y HYAYN OL SNOILONALSNI Tvay3A
ITOVM SOUVMOL HLNOS INNLLNOD o4O Ms JADIL £ESM NISCY 8959 NOSY3ILSYW ¥202/6/9
ASUNOT ONIFUNS DIYM ONIMOTIOL LON ATIEN % AHLOWIL
SYIONIASSYd TTV HOd INISIYd $Add AINSHE  AYAE0D YAdWoOW 80L32 ONNID ¥o¥L A3TTVH VSIT ® NIWYrN38 ¥20Z/3/9
‘HOTHD AL34VS AINHONI "DONINYYM Tyauan
1Snr 13%01L ON OS 11 33S 10N QId "SA0NS
FHL ANOAIE VM ¥ ONILYIYD 30 S18Od3Y
dO¥d NI ONINONVYL LN3AIYd OL NY3LS IN3¥8 MS SPTSM 310V £269 HIIW NVYIHOT 2 H4Fsor #20%/8/9
L1H0d NQ 3NIT NI MYHT ONY NY31S QYvOsdvLS
NO dN H3AAYT WIMS 1411 OL G3LONYLSNI
WI3H 1N3H8 Ms ¥8¥ SM Hv3980D 0419 SNIMAYM MO RHIN ¥20Z/8/%
3HL 1V GTIHD HLIM AYAMEIANN 09 Ol 1N0AY 1v¥o8
OV TYNDIS ONILSIOH NI Av130 ANZIHE  ANQH0D L1 20 AYY3HO NVIANI 092 S3AMDIONA 13INYD ¥20Z/L/9
ONILIZTUAO0D FUY ATHL —L4vHOHILYM Aisnd Ms SNNIM ¥Nod £6 MS WNSSOdO 0669  IMOUD ATIAINYA ¥ NYANS ¥20Z/1i8
40 3JIS NO SYIFGWNN LOT ANV $TvO3d OvH AINO
FA9NL L NO 31d03d € REEDR) A¥QH0D NOLONINN3g SET YIANNOTd PLIL ATTSNIH WIASSAr ¥ Hdv yzozIois
HY3IO ALIJVS HIFHL TV LIYWN A¥QHOD 1800 (1] 1NaITvH 8422 WHOA VHANIA 2 WYITIIM +$202/92/S
Q33N LON AYI ASHL HONON3 MOIS ONIAING 3yY
ASHL 1v08 NO SNIVIdWO2 "ONIAIMO WOW 80d 8
1v08 3H1 20 MOvE 3HL NO ONILLS WOL  ANGHOD siXy 6% 8 8% A2 1SNJ0T AINOH t¥rL NYOINNIH QiAva ¥Z02/52/G
¥ SSYUOAQONS VHANYS
139 0L X2va LNIM - SLINIVC I ON WOL  AYMTHOD 96 30 A¥JHOO 856 OV NVOINNYH 2021525
0F 40 0334S ONIQ3I3DXI ATBAN LIYWN MS YIANITAvE 66EMS HNNWIHD L9859 3NIT I¥3r 7 gIYNOQ ¥202152/5
Q334s Q3003 MMONMOY / S# 1071 LON LY Ms HIANOVHL AT OULIN L8P SM JASNOYUD ¥EE8  HVTVHOIN AYYIN T WYITIIM  #202/52/5
J8NL Y NO g3TINd LivA MS NOLONINNIgG 0ZL MS LUMSNA 2802 SOMVINQYYD  #20C/52i9
SGN OL NOILNILLY T1Nd SNIAIO LON ¥3AYISEO 1OVHL ¥ 13VYHOIN
FETIVAY A13LVIAINKI LYW Ms TYHUYdYHO 9PE SM I 1373 SOQ2 H138¥ZN3 2 130r (ARl
NOIHSND Lv3S 21aVMOYHL 4333 d31vonas
TAEVIIVAY ATILVIAIWWNI NOIHSND LIYN  AMQEOD SNIINMOYD 30 MVH 8LpL ONNOAINITHLSH 2 NYTVY  $2OZHTIS
1v3S I1GYMOYHL 433X 9/473S 2 HOLIMS
T N33ALIE GNOD 'GHOD HOVLIY 0L d31vond3
F1GVIIVAY AT3LVIGINWI LLvN AHOHOD  JVIN HINWOVHL AB 30 L1 R V¥IL 40 W13 2508 aiadanaig Y202VUS
NOIHSNO 1v3S I18YMOHHL 433X /47138 AHOOITHONITINNOD
'F HOLIMS T NI3M)I8 QYO0 P00 HOYLLY NGONNVHS
01 a31vyoNaz/sA:d 9 AINO 80d £ 0££0 T34
SYIGWNN LOT ON LNE AMIC 9€51 TvO3A ANV v Mms 470M AJYD 2989 YIS Y202I02IS
ATIIHDIIW 2 SITHYHD
S1INOV 3417 ON SAYY0B310AavYd Z1d Ms ¥202/02/S
$9Z YINIILS MS 40 31QTIN HYAYH Z1ikdd Ms $202/02/S
TINH NO YIBWAN 10T ON ££ST ¥INIILS ILIHM IN3HE M AN LHIVA 7202 TS SM 1D%INQ S96L ATIINNIS ATT3Y B QUVHDIY  ¥Z0Z/6T/S
TINH NO H3BWAN LOTON TLP0 ¥INIILS MOTIIA AN3¥g ms WINIAVE 2202 96% SM 12%IN0Q T6L ONOTNOSITIVBSIIHD  P20Z/6T/S
INDZ
IHYM ON OLN) INOZ LSYvA WO NOLLISNVL Q33dS HOIH 1IVN ms Mo QVET MS NON ££2¢ IWINDILODS  ¥ITOZ/OT/S
1¥08 NO 38 OL HLO8 Q3LXNYISNI
4TUVYL NG HIHLO LNJ 108 NO TY230 INO AIND AN3uE ms SOIVYIS 9v5 530 ¥IDAVE T0V9 ¥INVE HIANYXATY B AGTIN 13HIVY vzoz/e/s
Tianyd
1HOI MOTI3A DNINNG THYM ONILVIND 1N348 M ¥INIVEL BTOZ ar 230 uQ AHABOD TESL ANTHICR INTTVN B ugo0y  TLOU/BHY
LHOIT MQTIIA BNINNG TAYM ONILYIYD IN3u8 ms NOLONINNIE €67 SM 125300 ¥36L HLUWS INVI B SYWOHL  ¢202/8T/t
1HDIT MOTIIA ONIUNG IHYM ONILYIED 1N3¥8 ms INNNMOND 1007 6L MS 01v34N8 88€9 NIMO NIZUNYA B WYNIM  520Z/8T/F
LHDIT MOTIIA SNIYNA DIVA ONILVIYD AN3¥8 MS ANVININH EZ0Z 82E MS DOHANNOYD Z§59  MIHINIDIMOSO YONNIWAINYW  ¥202/8T/Y
1HIIT MOTIIA ONI¥NA IHNYM ONILV3ED AN3ug ms TYYUVAYHD L107 167 SM 12 %0NQ 8864 NOSLYIBIND VHANVS B WM ¥Z0Z/8L/Y

NENVA NOLLOV |

[ _w3giddo | MolvoOT

vom | 1071 | ssawaav

L INVN

[ auva ]




4 EEDY
RLCEEDY
TvaH3A
Tvaudsa
Ivau3a
Ivad3A
vayan
IVad3an
Tvay3A

L ED)

Ivad3aa

Tvadan

B\ EED
Tyauan
vau3A
IvaN3an
L\ LEED

Tvad3an
Ivad3an

Tvad3A

§Y3ENL LNO ONIddYMS LIvN
FHM DY1d ONIAYTASIC ATINILSISNOD LON
SV SNISIVY NO MOTS Alsnd
QldJvdl LYW
40 3N IHL ONISSOYD THO439 NNy LLvd
OI34vHL YILINT ONY IHOR NYNL OL 3N TIvd
OV ONISIVA NI AVT13a LHONS AN3¥g
SY1d ONIAYIdSIa LYW
A1LNILSISNOONI H3dIY 3911 ONIddYMS LVOSE IS
SHIGWNN LOTON 9340
354N AN3Iyg
XYM QIHIACD ~ ONIJHUNS INYM NYHL HOVIS
ANITMOL 330N 1v0d ANIHIE JYV084d8NS NO
NI LSvHD TINd OL WAHL G3.LD3XIA LHOMMOT1FA UEE]
¥314Y 4334S 3101 LV HVAVI NI GNSONOS DNIMOL
H3AI¥ ANY 38N1 ONNOY1Id3a LYW
NIHM ©V1d G3AVI4SIQ ATLNILSISNOONI
LNNOWY LOTHHOO NIVLEO LYW
0L INOH QINUNLIY SLIAHOYT 3417 40 HIABANN
ANZIDIFINSNI X00d QL 380710 S3I0Y1 20 dNOXRO
INOZ INVM ON OL LSV WOXL ONILISNYHL LYW
¥314d¥ ONIENL 40 N3 Lv SY3AI ANY F8NL NI
ONITINd NIHM D¥1d ONMOHS ATLNILSISNOONI
SH3ANL dYMS LIVN
OL ONIYdIdd OY1d ONIMOHS ATLNILSISNOONI
1I9HOUIIVM NO SHIEGWNN LOT ON LiviN
LIYH0HALYM NO SHIENNN LOT ON LIvA
38NL ONIAOT43A NIHA 914 3SIVH 0L MOTS Livi
204 OL XJIVYE A3LDIQ 44d ON QYvoaa1aavd
SAIIELTY GNV %200 OL NHNLI 1N3Jua
01 a319NYLSNI G4d ON (v083700Yd NO 153N
OV1d ONISIVY NI AV13Q LHDITS 1N3ua
F50434 LvHL WIHL Q0L SYH Alsnd
3NO ON QI¥'S ANV A3 LVAVHOOVY SYA HOLYHIdO
*AdON ONITTOH Z38NL NO Z1dd ¥ QvH
440 3Vl 3¥043d ANOZ 3101 NI W3HL 03ddOis
3NOZ LSyd 40 dY31D AVLS Ol 03DVHIOONT LYW

Q31NN ATHL HILSY “TAVIQIN Y LYMLIIMS
AONE A2S3 YV OL 431 $3ITVT 4O dNOYD

Ms
Mms
Ms
AYQHOD
ms
ms
AMQHOD
AdQHo2
ms

Mms

ms

Mms
ms
Ms
Ms
AdQH0D

MS
AYQHOD

ms

NCOLNOd

eI

30HVL
IANDNLYN BIS

HYAYA
NOLONINNIE

HYAN!

NOOLNOd

Vo3

NOLONINNIS

1va02
NOLONINNTE

a¥voa31aavd

Ivo3ad

SIVO13 IdILNN

671 SM

o¥Z sv

9UTMS

LH

01z 8§30
oK

FICNO L¥re
F1ov3 e289
ANZZIND SO¥L

S5v8 2518

WNSSO0dO0 €914
Ssvya edig

€F 02 LSNDO0T NANCH L2¥L

£0SMS

65l MS

k4o

+9 SM
9T SM
BELSM
2 SM
eSx

00% SM
95 40

AONA PE6L

NOIT $50L

id soss

NIAYY 6879
ERSLERATL]
A3YdSO 8£59
1M 91€L
NOWIVS 51€L

HONA 6L

ANV 37§37 8 SINN3Q 018

SIINVHE AUV 2 NIAYYIN
NYIOVAY YLSRIN ¥ 4431 &/8

¥3d134d 3TvA 68
]

SI3M ANOHLNY /8
WIHINVIN ST €/8

SYOMAAIHS ¢/e
IHY3L® NIHJALS
LYINHOE NYSNS ? AV €18

SWYITImM Z/a
IRYFHO ® NIHA3LS

SANOT OIvHI 6212

AH8NYH VAT ® SYTOH2IN
NYTON TIF '8 MOldLvd
NIHOH ATJd4039

3LH Mo % ITva
OYITTHYA ¥ SUIANV

HITTVL YIIINNISC 7 SINVE

W3 €82, QUVOIATH VIDNKLYd ¥ AUV

$310¥1 40 dNoYUD

L

7L
L
LTL
LElL
8ZL

3473
0zIL

hAAA



$Tv03a aayldx3a

ONIBNL ITHM INISIYd H3LLOIS ON

301Y FONVLSIQ ONOT

ONIENT dNS NO ¥IYWNN LOT YA Odd ON
QYYOEI1AAV O XVAYN GHVOd NO S.04d ON
QX T WYAYN NO STW3IIA 0202

3ENLVYNOE

S# 10T LONISNLNO €

QUYORLNG dH 0 ¥ NO

¢330 OLOW NON

AYMHEIANN 3TIHM 31vO JHL 30 JAISINO
NOOLNGd 3H.1 40 ANOH4 NI ONIONYLS
S03dd ON YAV NO 1dd T

SLNNOA DNIOD
S1NNOQ ENIOa
$Iv030 a3¥IdX3
STv230 a3IdX3
JBNLVNOE

NAMOG HIRISIM OV1d ON

DIVMON NI JENLY NO €

INOZ DIVAA ON NI IHVM ONLLYIHD
AVMEZONA LYOS/M Hv3Y NOYES NG DNLLUIS

$Tv030 A3uIdXF

AVYMHIONN LYOR/M HY3Y YOV3 NO ONLLUS

$¥O30Q Q3yldX3
SUIBNNN

LOTON % INOZ 40 LNGQ ONIJANS VM

ANOZ Invm

ON NI §38N.. OML

SNIMOL THHM WHOALYTd HY3Y NO ONIANVLS

A1dWOD OL ONISNAIY

STWOIG AFdldX3
BR LR EBIEE EHE]
~§TW23d A3uidx3
$Tv030 Q3IdX3
S$Tv230 Q3¥IdX3
$7v030 Q3ldX3
$VO30 Q3uidX3
$1v23a a3xdx3
$7vD30 A3uldX3
$Tv230 GAidx3
$7W030 g3yIdX3
VO30 Q3uidX3
SWV230 A3aidx3

LIVHOUI LYW NO SO4d ON
L4vVHDH3 VM NO Qdd ON

ONINYA JILYHYE3

1HON MOTI3A ONINNG ONIG33dS

sy¥3anL

ONITING FUHM IIML SLNINOT BNIOT
14¥H2HILYM NO $03d ON

LIvHOHdLYM

YIFHL NC $.# 101 Lnd OL W3HL A3WHOLNI
OSTV 'LHOIT MOTIZA DNIMNA 1SY4 OL ONIOD
1HOITMOTTIA ONIFNG 1SV OL ONIOD
AVAYI NOSH3d Z QHVOg NO Jdd ON
LIYHIHILYM NQ STYO3Q ON

ENINYYM OL Q3avHENWOg

371DV3 SOUYMOL HLNOS A3NNIINOD

ISHNOD ONIFYNS THYM FHL ONIMOTICH LON
"OV1d TYNOIS LSICH OL 3unTIvd

HAYAI NO 04d ON
S# L0717 IAVH LON

Q10 INQ ONY Gd ON SY3qHY0aIIaavd Z
Y3.LvYM NI S1 3301S IUHM DY ONISN LON
DAVAL Y ONDIVAL TNV LSvd HOoud

NMOQ ONIMOTS ‘ADNE FHL 50 3AIS DROUM
ONIENL NIHM ¥ILYM JHL NI

SYM AGOBINOS NIHM DV1d ONIAYIDSIO LON
3ANL4TITA SYM 3H ‘INCZ VM

ON NI 3:¥M 31v3Y0 OL LON 695 MS TT10L

(QNIXIIM LSYT

WOMS dN MOTT04) INISIH HINMO LvOB ¥O
# LOT YIHUAN 'LOT FUOKS NO SAYT 314NN
ONY LHOINYIAD A3HI0A 2020 Y030

JENLYNOE
FTaVAMOUHL

N 3dAL ONJSLHOM AYN ON LISNNS ¥3ldy

EL

M{FHL OL XOVE 03180053 - ITBVMOUHL

Al 3dAL ONANSSI TYOINL0313 0L ANA NIAND
034 ON/LISNNS YA LY SLHOT AYN ON
ONIHIVONDdY SYM LISNNS

JONIS INITVAINDI HO LHOITHSY I ALIHAM

? SLINDVF 34N 130 HI0Q OL NYNLIY OL
W3HL Q0L /SL3X%0VT 34N ON 37AAIN NILLNO
SIVO30 ON SHYAVH T

L4VHIHZIVM NO STVO3A ON

$1w030 ON Q3ZIYOLON NON

B3~ DIVA ON ONIHNQ IV ONLLYSUD

EINIA TS A

LHOE MOTIIA DRIMIY

3ENLYNOE
SI03d Q3 HIdX3
SLINOQ ONKD

ANTHE
FLEL
Livw

Alsny
UEE ]
ALsny
ZUy4
ANIYS
ALSny

Alsny
Adlsny
Alsny
ALSNY
ANTY8
ALsny
lack g
FHLYD
AN3y8
D3ND
Alsny
Atsnd
Zlud
Ziud

PUE )
ALSOY
3IHLYD

93¥0
FLEL:)

FEEL ]

LEL D)

ALsSny
Livw

Alsnd

PUEC]

pLEL

noL
v

v

LIV

AdQuOD
AVQHOD

Mms 70931G0vd dit GNYLS)

Avos370avd
NOOQINOd

0803
£88
£8L MS

Ms UVYOHINAAYAZ ? SHYAY 06Z MS

AHQHOOD

AdQHOD

AHQHOO
AHQHOD
MS
Ms
MS
Ms
Mms

AYO¥OD
A¥QHCD
A¥QHOD
AdQ¥0D
AMGHOY
Ms
Ms
ANQE0OD
AHQAOD

MS
Ms

MS

AMQHOD
AdQHOD

AYQHCD
MS

Ms
A¥QHOO
ANQHOD
AMOHOD
AdQHOD
ms
ms
e
M5

[mouron]

AYAVH
HIONYH
NOOAINOd
1voa Nor
NOLONINN3E

MVAYS
INIAVEYD
YHYNYA
IvHEYdYHD
o3
LvHONVLS
IVAIVVYHD

VHYNYA
INIUANS DIS
FE TR

IOLL

HINAH

TYUNVIYHO
NOOQINOd
NOOLNOJ
NOOLNOd
NOOLNCOd
HINNAYH

SAVAYH
HYATH
11v800
o3l
NOOLNOd

AVAVE
NOOINOd

Vo3

WA

SAVAYR
3L

VERNOOW
HYAYA
Q¥vOd 310avd

d3IANVISI vrve
NQOLNOd
LIVHOYILSYIN
ANNT

IvO3y

1vO8 37003d

SUVAYH
Q3AYOLON
HYAYA
1veod
NOLONINN3E
1v0d ONIHSI3
AeMEANIE
narn
)

(i3]
187 MS
tL S30
L ms

sor

400
9980
B6Z MS
SZLMS
€O
ERVLGY MS
v SM
LH
o
BLEMS
ZLEMS
HKEMS
[245)
S€5 SM

ZE SM

LE SM
1zqQo
4203
ZET SM
8EL SM.
952 SM
LI¥ SM
LY MS
0OFZ SM

8r

0o

I

£G4

€1
el Ms
SIZMS
5500
¥S 20

¥ ms
vl SM

L€ 8M
v Q2
99
£ 8M

0L 30
605 MS
WBFZ SM

wrsm
EGEME

PSEZSE SM
B9EMS

£ §30

£21
Fi-gele]

34:]
Il SM

IZk 830
[ =]
eV

(1)
SET
¥Z5 530
IG5 M8
oL
IPELME

_k:ﬁ

ASNJIOT AINOH PISL ERCELLENUEE:]
VW 0484 AINVYH AONVN ¥ N3AILS
NOM g6aL SI¥YNVL HL3E ¢ NHOP

ANZRO pIeL HONVETY LLYW ¥ ¥OISSar
LNBITYH S0Z4 SNIHDILS ¥SIHIAL 7 1IVHIIN
OTvd44NG L2990 NOSQIAYO ABYR 9 143873

N z504 NOSNHOf ¥OAIYL
ANMNGIHD S0 NYW4NH YI13ONY 7 WIL
YIINOUD GBLL Hr ¥310v8 §31HVHD
1O ¥3HLYEH 9gvL Q¥3HdIHS 32ZNS ¥ N3
HSNSMNL 8291 O3HLVIH YANI 7 Qlvyd
Lo NZZtD pL99 SIANOTISSN 7 AJddd3r
13sNng zeLL NVQINNIA INNY § DN
YvQ3IDe9k.  NLLHUYA SIAYC 2 2NINIHLYA
Qv¥34na Zove TUH IMIHA T NYAY
NISOY £159 YYD YaNISNMT ¥ HLINNIN
HIQTWBLIB ZSNYH AYVI ¥ NU3A

NOWIWS GIEL  SUIANYT IONYT ¥ YIJINNIC
IAIEA XOd P19 YILYMIDAINE YHAVT T NIASH
Y3IHIOD 0688 ITIVYONISSVW HLvd ¥ L¥I80H
OOHANNOHO $Z799 NHAINO NIIANYAN 2 NN
HOYIB ¥2Z.  HUVHd VSSITIW 7 STTIYHI
3LHM 903 ZEZ9 @713H GINVA ¥ ¥ISINNIP

NISOY 8958 NOSYILSYIW AN ¢ AHLOWLL

IMDE £9E2 SLIWON KVYSNS T LSINYI

AYHIFADVH SGEL LLOWNYIOOW Lildg
AMYIGADVH SSEL LLONYFAONW L1NE
AoV cale S60YO 3§83
AJHdSO rESE ANV ANQHINY
AoV s00L NIDLSNV LHIBOY
NOY3H £428 SAHE XN3MQ 7 NVO3IN
OWdNY 2269 QHO4038 VINYIA T NvANE
AoV €L89 SINVIE AUYW 9 NIADVI
HIANNOT ZZ12 HOIY dff 2 TA¥IHO
Y3a7v 5128 313¥34 YHSITY 7 NILSNIF
ANENVH vs2L SWYQV VIIDNY ? NHOr
NOWTYS S1E SYIANYT
IAVIYILNGD €0V ASBIM INIANDIYT T QUVHOIE
NOIMZekd AVHO 31507

JI0M ATHD L1248 NIZLSHOT ANVD
YIHLVIH zgoL FTHUNH NS
Y3IHIVIH BE9L SUYAS VLINY ¥ 37va
L3SNNS 9¥29 SINOT LYIBOH
AJYdSO 0ore YIAMOE NHOT™
QUIGDNIVINNH SBEL BE00 YYVYS ¥ AIAVa
1$380d 905 .8OHD ¥IONIJS 7 3NIId Nvay
H3QTV L0Z8 LSNHL ONINNYA

LO NIBOY 8958 NOSUIALSYW AT1DH T AHLOWEL
ONNID vobL AITIVH ¥SIT ¢ NIWYINIE
¥3IOAvE Zves LITHHYT 3AVa

T1OV3 1469 NOLITONIS HIHLYIH 7 NVAY

NOY3HZ6Z9  NOSHUDION AHLVD ¥ 11028
HIHMOD 6858 NOSATAVE VLI © A¥HYY

AVl BBEL  NOSMOVI 3SIN3A ¥ QHvHIIN

HO HIHOD 8999 YILSTIM VIAANY 2 TAVHIIN

H3AV3IE vEES LHOIEM VIHINAD
Ssva erie 113SSNA WX ¢ 1IVHOIN
Y3HLV3IH 8992 AY3dNHS ¥SSMIN

VdvlvD 0008 1FHONYM M3HIYIH 7 LIYuvr

AJHdSO 0159 T13MOd HOIF R AIAVO

W0k HOM3J0H ATHIANR
HIOTWIH L1k2 HOAYITING (¥HAL T WVITIM
Mvd Mvd OFBL NOLIIOOW YSSMEN ¥ QIYNOY
1NaTvH B£22 NUCA VHONIA T WTTIM

UIANNOT ¥21L SSO¥D AV
¥3Av3E 9vSe ONDA AUODIUD
NILYAMIIIMS LrZ8 VU3 TAUIHO T ACHL
NOM 960, NYADIONS YHONY § SINHD

WO £i2s 33N 14035

yI0UBLE
PTOVLLIS

yOTBLY

VGRS
YZOLBL/S
vZoTalle
[T TEY
YOzl
yZozIOLS
YZoTe
FZOZALS
FTOUSLS
yeouslig
yZozoLS
rIOUSLE
¥T0T9LG

skB
pTOZUSHE
YIOUSHe
FIOUGLS
yIOUSHS

roUPLS
YZOZIVLIG

FIOUVLS
pZOUP LS
YIOIWLIG
YZozes
¥20UBe
YZouie
roTiLe

yaoziLe
v20uUe

yIoTLG

vToueTS

YZOLRTS

YOUsUS
FIOTOTS

YZOWOLIS

vzousTis




3NOZ TIVMON NI SNOSHId € ONWOLIIYOS LIV MS a3ads LEMS YIHIOD PELY LSNULAYV LI3AN0D  OLB
40 OV NO 4OOLS ¥IDNISSYHI0
T13J ¥3R NIHM DY GFAYTASIA NIAIN
LJVHONIIMMNO SOJdON  ALSAN  MS SVAYH S6EMS SINNIWAIHO £65B AMIBWYTIINYHAILS  OUE
SNIENLINHMYILIOSON  ALSOH  MS HANTIAYE [T MIMDIESEL  $1380M NVSNS TUSINGD  Gim
I8 LVW MS WO P MS HYON02 Z2Kr ¥aINST3 Ly3s0Y o
I18YLVIINI 40 ON3 LY GIAV1ASIO LON D14
NMOQ SYA 33IDIS TTHM IRIL YN MS HANTIAYR LESM IMPAEOEL  SL38ON NVSTIS ¥ LSANES o
40 00I¥3d SHOT A4 OVT4 ONIAVILSIA LON
SLINOC-ONIERL JUHM S3T0MID  ZUMd  Ms J0HYL oov 8 3SNOUO PYES 1 OV T NWHONINNID I o8
038 5L NYHLTHON ¥0J NMOA INSMUIIS  3IHLYD  ANAHOD 14vHONALSVIV vy ANQUOD BEFL NOATAWY 7 NOG e
NIHW 0IAVTASIa 1ON SV ¥3IDIS ONITING
AVAYIANN TTHM VOB SO MOVE NOBNILLIS  ALSNE  MS VHYYA &SM UTTANYM PYEE  NNYE NONNYHS ¥ T3VHOIN e
L3MOLOTUVW  SHINMO LOT40 LSENO-SYI3AGIHIdXT  INBNE  ANAHOD VAV 2447 MYd MY B6LL OV NYSNS % ANOHLNY 1
30 ONIQYYOBIAYM  LIVW  MS LEER 205 SM HoNa oL8L ANIWFOUNWN §30 “e
40 QN3 LV G3AVASID LON Y12
NMILUFd OlAVAL LYW MS NOWLSY I LLSM QUISONHOOW 9502 S3UVO Yd 3 GAOL W
SSWIOTO ¥ILNAGD ONIMOTIOA LON
ONIQUOVEINVA NIHM 3LV &l8nl  mE TNTTIAVOND 08 T WYNDESS  OEEM HLIEVEIE T ENYG o
JHLNI 81 NOSYd THM OV ONISN LON
INOZASYAIMSAOTIAIMIHL  LIVW  MS SQUVORT A W £0F MS HANMINAING 159 HIHOLNG INNVZNS e
NI SLIOVE 3411 ON SdNS 2 NO STV S
UILVMNISI 4IEALINHN OV ONISO LON 418l ME NOOLNCH €61 MS 4NWI1 9968 4130 A0
WVAYNNO G ON  ALSNY  MS HYAVH o¥S Sm ayIg3Nn1a 6628 138VH vavauve
JENLYNOE  INJNA  AYONOO WaEvdYHD 2 LNEITYH 5022 SNIHAALS YSIu3L % TAYHOIA
A4VHONZIVM ONLLYHIAO (21 HONIN  ALSNd MS NOOLNOJ 826 SM ITOHO AVF €EED NNYWYH3 NHOT
SODISHUM  3IHLYD  AXQHOD o3y 9540 LOWTAERZ  QUVOIATH VIOINLVA P HuYW
3d0Y DNITIMd '1¥08 NO SLHOM ON £2/2 NO
YINVO OL DIOS 22/ 40 ONINIAT QIMAIA
§1¥03003¥1dX3  AlSNY M UDOVAL ves 30 ¥39QVA 04INIILIIYLE JINAVL T NHOT [+
SIVOIAQIYGNT  ALSNH MS NOOINCd SBLMS NOIT Z0L2 YHOIY 2 STHHIOM H138 ANVI £/
]UNGI00Nd  INIWE  MS L4vHOu3LSYI £VE SM YA AVT BYPL OTTAVF 8¥k2 273
¥ ISUN0D ¥FJOYA NO ¥ILVOE GILONKULSNI
‘NOLLOFHIO ATHIHANOS NI ONIFNNS THVM
407 dONOOLAILONKUISNI  ALSNYM  AMAHOD uIHovHL 839 SMO AJYASO9BES  SLNIEOM VANVMIN 23U oz
'6 OVH ABHL Tdd £ ¥Od 02LYY Lvod
WIMNG  ALSMH  AWQHOD L4VHONILSYW @r YIdNOND 512 YINNVLSINVI 0L
JUIM SYISNL TTHM OV ONIAYIASIO LON
SHIAWNN LOTHO SO ON SHYAYM Z  ALSNY  AMONOD A Z 5132 HOOTNIH BipL LIVMSOWVITIVG 0Tz
FELTREg T S$I¥O30  ALSMY  ANQHOD IvosFIaavd 6Ly AQHOD BYEL SYILWAOF BANYD  0TL
Q3uldX3 440 Q3L ¥3LYM NI ivoaI1aavd
APANIANNTTHM  ALSNH  A¥QHOD NOOLNQd szr ¥IANNOTZBOZ  STIINNOANVSNS TSINVF  0ZL
1¥0S NOOLNO IHL 30 MOS NO ONIONYLS
WOLYNOE  INT¥E  Ms NOOLNGd oz ms II0M ATHD O¥es QIINNYSNS 7I3VHOIN 0z
LHENMOTIZA¥ALAY IHYM  INZNE  MS Y3INNAYE 65 SM NIgOY €859 MHOANIAFLS 6L
S4IA LYW MS AVH ¥38 82 SM NIHOM Lb¥e  ¥INQWVO INVF 7HJISOr  6LL
110 dYMS OL IVOS OLNI 9MNLONIGOH ITHM
HON 301H BNISNL 40 ANF L¥ Q3SIVY OV14 ON
SO0 LNQHIM VA INZ¥E s HYAD £0F MS MHNNGIHO ELSH YIHALNNVENS 6L
LN ATIVR (dODQTUVA 88 LHFHE  ME vy 205 MG SOHANNOKE 9858 300S0Y NV T AIWHIF 6L
S153N9Q JYIM ATHL AIVS ) SO ON VAV
INOZDIYMONOCINL  LIVN  MS NOOLNOd ¥ s ©OHANNOYE 8209 NOSJWIS NOUVHS  BLL
SQUYA G3HANNH WAINTS DA ONDIVIN
e SI¥O30 OMUDGE JUVM  INI¥B  MS SHAVAVI €04 SM WO 1559 NYWSSOH Vinwd 9183508 8Ll
NI 440 QILLIVAYH MOTI3A + 9 Q3Y | /5T¥03Q
ON 40 Q3LL ¥IIVM NI SXVAYY 3018 2
JENETR. S0 NIIVMNIONLYOTd  INZ¥B  MS QIZHOLON NON 98 SM 319va 2869 IMOTOT ANV B
N9 430 Q311 $1¥D3A 03IdX3 WYIAIS
eI ¥3lyM  INZ¥B  MS 1v08 MY 86L SM 379va 0088 NIV QIAVA T NMVD BLL
NIONLIYO4 1n 440 Q31 Tva3d 03uldX3
LD VYR YIYMNIONUVOTY  IN3¥E  Ms 1¥083100Yd LEMS SOHUNNOYO B.89 NOSJWIS NOUVHS  8biL
900 330 q31L LIVHOUALYM NO STVY33A ON
1PN OTIVN YILVMNIONUYOTH LNG 300 IN3¥E  MS IvosI1aavd y5¥ SM WVIAS0ND 2229 LSNULHUWS SIWVT  81iL
Ol 440 G3LLOLOW-NON $Tv¥03a QIHIdX3
LIAOLL AT UVA 5000 INZNA  MS NOOINOJ 157 MS ovddne secs INOTYN AMVA 23A3LE 8Ll
¥ 1¥ Q3SIval LON ¥31VM NO DNILYO4 1vog
Q710 S¥VIA T NVHL J4OW STYOIA aIMKIXI
FENLYNOS  ZU¥d  ANANOD NOOOLNOd 830 AHYIEIOVH B89L ONVEVISRILYA B AMYMAL  SML
INVIAYNOIVOE  ALSNH  MS YHYNVA 195M TYNO sere ACOOW 3INIW PNVIHE €L
$Iv93A0FWXT  ALSNH M8 AVHONILS ELLSM WO 9658 MININVO INNCSHLSN  £WL
JALVNOEONTING  AISNY  MS NOOLNOd 65E SM AVF TEEL JUYSYISINVT  EML
QYv08  INZ¥E  AUQEOD HINMAVE 05 WY TULINGPE, YIATNON YNNOQ V1% SINVE  THL
NG ¥3L10dS ON ‘SFNL 31VHIdIS Z ONIMOL
OV NS SV OL JUNTVS  INIHE M NOHLSYIH LLSM QUIBONDIOON 5502 $3Uv9 YINvd ¥ 4001 [y
SW¥03a03uIdXa  ALSNY MS SHYAW 957 SM MV3ASOUD 0526 A NIT1ANS T YIHAOLSINHD oL
$T¥03A0WIdXT  MSIY MS NOOLNOd 191 SM JOVEFIOL  UINSOUE ATUVO ¥ QTVHID L
WI3H ZHLIY 3A0 3OVHIONN INJN8  MS NOOLNOdJ e sm AUHMEOR ZULe ONVKINI Hd3sor oL
SvoIdaIUdXd  ALSNY MS NOOLNOd 567 SM NONaPke.  LLINNIE VIHLNAD ¥ IHOVE 73
SW030Q3WdXa  INIWE MBS NYAVY £92 SM NOOIS/v8  HSTYMVIZONY §13VHOIA  PZ0ZOL
ISYNOOMS  LIVN  Ms SNNIM 4nod 708 SMO NIAVY 9258 YVHIYOHLIR  vEousiL
40 NOILO3Y(O JUSOJAO NI ONIGHYOSTYM
ANOZLSVANILNGAONE  LIVN  MS naviv 3k MS HOM2E0L  NVIDIONE YHONY 2 SINHO 6202572
OL 3800 SYM 1vOS Q310N ‘G3SIVY ATIWNIH
SYM Y14 JHL AVMY 13 0Z XOHddY HISOTD
109 BY13 ON GIOLLON J8 NIHM AVMY
14 05 XO¥ddY 38N1 T IYOAHILVND 180d
S1VO8 OL 35072 J3dOY JIM J8NL TIONIS
RO SNOSHd Z TTIHM 03ATT4SIA LON Y14
SELCTON BELINIWE 30N LIYN MS  /0B370Qvd dn ONvLE!  ZYTMS 470M AJYO 7069 YIAWVS JTITHOIN 7 STTUVHD  PEDZAIL
VS NO 3ONYLSI0 ONOT DNTIZAYHL L3N0 £
LNIHG M ] MELMS NOMEZZL TIHOA 1103S




Cordry Sweetwater Conservancy District
Water Commission Meeting Minutes
August 8th, 2024
CSCD Office
***These minutes are not official until approved by the Water Commission***

Present: K. Brasseur, D. Caudill, A. Parris,

Absent: K. Short (CSLOA}, T. Kuhn

Guests:

Call to order: K. Brasseur called the meeting to order at 5:20 p.m.

Agenda Modifications: None
Freeholder Concerns: None
Minute Approval: July 11% minutes approval, Motion by D. Caudill, seconded by A. Parris, Unanimous approved.

Financials: Year end review completed by Horizon. Nothing significance of note... thankful it is done. Water
purchase amount has gone down as a percent to revenue. (good) Cash vs. accounts payable balance is good vs
last year. We are now, after the price increase, operating in the black again.

Water Operator Report: Josh — Rule book updates in progress. Replaced 3 service lines this month w/ 6 more
schedule for next week. Repaid 9 water leaks July. ~52% water loss.

Old Business:

A. 7246 Cordry Dr. — water committee would recommend that we compensate freeholder for
damages caused by water in the amount of $10,000 for expenses incurred and crediting their
water bill by approximately $200 for water usage. Motion made by Aaron P. seconded by
Denise C. Unanimous approval.

Which will presented to the CSCD board for approval.

Long Term Projects:

A. Update Water Department Rules Book — water utility book from 2008. Committee members and CSCD
staff to review see if changes are warranted. Josh is working on it will submit to committee for review.

New Business: None
Water Commission Member Concern/Comments: None

Adjournment: Motion to adjourn made by D. Caudill seconded by A. Parris at 5:40p.m. Motion passed
unanimously.

Next Meeting: September, 12*, 2024, at 5:15 p.m. at the CSCD Office.

Respectfully submitted by: Aaron Parris



" g | ' Ecosystems Connections Institute, LL.C

LITI 9130 North 600 East  Denver, IN 46226 260.901.0561 ecosystemsconnections.com

Lakeshore erosion in Sweetwater Lake and Cordry Lake, Brown County, Indiana:

An assessment of the effects of boat wave action on shoreline stability

Sweetwater and Cordry Lakes

Brown County, Indian

Swvectwater Lake

From lake-art.com

Prepared for

Michael Leavitt, Board Chair
Cordry-Sweetwater Conservancy District
8377 Cotdry Drive
Nineveh, IN 46164
Phone: 317-933-2893

Prepared by

Jerry Sweeten, Ph.D.
Ecosystems Connections Institute, LLC
9130 North 600 East
Denver, IN 46926
Phone: 260-901-0561

Emuail: jesweeten(@ecosystemsconnections.com

Creatively—Collaboratively—Rooted in Science



UNDERSTANDING THE ASSIGNMENT

Ecosystems Connections Institute was requested to provide a proposal to the Cordry-Sweetwater
Conservancy District that would address concerns relative to the effects of boat wave action.
Cordry Lake, 160-Actes, and Sweetwater Lake, 275-Acres, were created by earthen dams. Each lake
is in the Norman Upland Physiographic region that is characterized by rugged topography and high
telief just south of the southern extent of the Wisconsin Glacier. The lakes were built covering the
underlying siltstone of Mississippian age and have a well-protected and forested watershed. The
lakes are relatively deep with excellent water quality. Both lakes are privately owned with an
estimated 1,700 lots across both lakes. Recreational use of the lakes is important to those in the
community around the lakes and over the recent past concerns have been raised over the increase in
motorized watercraft and the large waves from wake boats. The Cordry-Sweetwater Conservancy
District asked ECI to prepare an adaptable study design to better understand the surface waves,
wave enetgy dispersion, and wave attenuation from various boat types and the effect of wave action
on the surrounding shorelines and docks. The goal of the study is to be an independent research
initiative to produce targeted, unbiased data related to characterization of boat-generated waves and
to document ecological effects associated with the boat waves.

The Cordry-Sweetwater Conservancy District Board provided ECI with the following study
questions.

1. Is there erosion occurring on either lake?
a.  What is the largest contributing factor to erosion?
b.  Is there a particular sport or boat that contributes the most to erosion?
C. What actions should be taken to reduce erosion?
d.  What could potentially happen if nothing is done?

2. What effect if any, does wake surfing pose to current dock structures, shorelines, and
lake bottom?

3. With concern for both lakes in the district should wakesurf boats be allowed.
a. If yes, how far from shore should wake surfing activity be allowed?

4. Is there a difference between a wave from wake surfing and plowing vs tubing and ski activides?

*Note: All testing should be done assuming that wake surfing is conducted under current regulations
set forth by the district.

nnnnnnnn

: ' Creatively—Collaboratively—Rooted in Science
Page 2



ooooo

TASK

Task 1. Complete a review of the scientific literature and “white papers” that have focused on the
effect of boat waves, bank erosion on lakes, and can provide regulatory guidance.
Cost: $6,500

Taske 2. Create a general assessment of the entire shoreline of Cordry Lake and Sweetwatet Lake
using Matrice 350 RTK w/LiDAR and Photogrammetry to identify priotity sites and to
serve as a baseline dataset for future assessments. It is proposed to complete this survey
twice over the study period of three years. Cost for each lake: $9,500 (Total=$19,000/flight)

Task 3. Use identified high ptiotity sites (about 100-m in shore length/site) to complete:

A.

B.

C.

Detailed LIDAR survey and bathymetric map of the nearshore area.

Install shoreline transects using a series of fence posts that will be placed perpendicular
to the shoreline. The latitude and longitude position of each post will be determined and
distances between each will be measured relative to the shoreline. This approach along
with “item A” will allow quantification of the extent of bank etosion and/or
accumulation of sediment. Measurements will be taken annually over a three-year
period.

Document damage to piers through use of the images from Task 2.

D. Cost: for each lake: $6,500/site/year (includes all data processing).

Task 4. Install a remote wave sensor unit that will measure wave height, wave period, wave
direction, and wave period energy. Data from each sensor will be available on a live feed
website created by and maintained by ECL. Cost per sensor: $19,500/yeat

A.

Select a portion of shoreline in Sweetwater Lake approximately 300-feet long as the
study site for the wave sensor experiment, detailed LiDAR survey, shoreline erosion
monitoring, and to complete a bathymetric map perpendicular to the shoreline that will
extend from the study site across the lake from the shoreline. An Acoustic Doppler
Current Profiler (ADCP) will be used to make the bathymetric map transect.

One Sea View SVS-603HR wave sensor will be held in place near shore (distance from
shore to be determined). The sensor will record:

a. Wave height, Feet

b. Wave Period, Seconds

c. Wave Direction, Degrees

d. Wave Energy Period, meters/squated/second

Two pipes will be driven into the lake substrate. One pipe will be secured at
approximately 2-feet of water depth and one set at approximately 6-feet of water depth.
Each post will have a Campbell Scientific pressure transducer securely attached. The
pressure transducers will be programmed to measure water depth above the transducer
once each 1.5-Seconds.

Creatively—Collaboratively—Rooted in Science
Page 3



) ' Creatively—Collaboratively—Rooted in Science

D. Research suggests a wakesurf boat wave requires 500-feet to attenuate to the same wave
size and energy from a ski boat wave. We propose track distances from the Wave
Sensor to be 10-feet, 50-feet, 125-feet, 250-feet, 500-feet.

E. Data from a vertical temperature and Dissolved Oxygen Profile will be collected before
and at the conclusion of the experiments.

F. Fence posts will be installed perpendicular to the shoreline beginning 2-feet from the
edge of bank in the water followed by a post 10-feet and 20-feet. Survey grade GPS will
be used to accurately document each post position.

Task 5. Write an understandable and pragmatic final technical report about the study findings along

with recommendations. This task also includes annual progress reports, on-site meetings
and/or computer meetings. Cost: $9,500

Task 6. Submit quarterly reports to the Cordry-Sweetwater Conservancy District. Quarters will begin at
the start of the study.

Page 4



BUDGET

Project Tasks Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 3 Year Total
Task 1 $6,500 - - $6,500
Task 2 $19,000 ($9,500/ lake) - $19,000 ($9,500/ lake) $38,000
Task 3 $6,500 $6,500 $6,500 $19,500
Task 4 $19,500 $19,500 $19,500 $58,500
Task 5 - - $9,500 $9,500
Task 6 - - - -
Total $51,500 $26,000 $54,500 $132,000

PAYMENT TERMS

Invoices will be created and sent once annually in the month of July for $51,500 Year 1,

$26,000 Year 2, and $54,500 Year 3.

Creatively—Collaboratively—Rooted in Science

Page 5




PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE

THIS PROPOSAL REFLECTS FEES FOR PROFESSOINAL SERVICE AND ACCEPTED BY

THE DESIGNATED PROJECT LEAD AGENCY OR GROUP

Signature:

Name (Printed):

Title:

Date:

Respectfully submitted by

S

Jerry Sweeten and the ECI team of Herb Manifold, Kyle Boone, James Heimlich, and Melinda

Sweeten (President)

coMHEE T, Jerry Sweeten, Ph.D.
e Professor Emeritus of Biology and

3
& Environmental Studies
g ‘—J “ ! Manchester University
Ecosystems Connections {nstitute
v g130 North 600 East
i Denver, Indiana 46926
Phone: 260-901-0564

) ' Creatively—Collaboratively—Rooted in Science

Page 6



